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MISSION STATEMENT

Tower Bancorp Inc will positively impact lives by

helping people achieve their dreams

VISION STATEMENT

Tower Bancorp Inc will be high performing

regional financial services company that

creates financial success for consumer

business and not-for-profit customers in

the markets we choose to serve

VALUE STATEMENT

Tower Bancorp Inc is committed to attracting and

retaining employees who are passionate

about providing uncompromising service to

our customers with sense of warmth integrity

friendliness and company spirit We value

and respect each other because we truly

believe that our success only comes

from working together for our teams success
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

2008 was challenging year for many organizations but despite the difficult economic conditions we are pleased to report

that we continued to thrive displaying consistent solid financial performance and reaching number of milestones for our

company

This has been an exciting and busy time for us In November of 2008 we made the initial announcement of the partnership

between Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone Financial Corp The announced partnership closed on March 31 2009 and is

win-win for both institutions as it provides number of benefits to our key stakeholders It allows us to create more career

growth opportunities for our employees future expanded footprint with enhanced products and services for our customers

high-growth company with attractive dividends for our shareholders and the ability to contribute actively and generously in

the communities we serve

In addition on April 2009 we announced that our companys common stock had been approved for listing on the NASDAQ

Global Market under the symbol TOBC To list on the NASDAQ company must meet stringent financial and liquidity

requirements as well as satisfy their corporate governance standards We are proud that our company fully met those

requirements and we feel that the listing will provide greater liquidity as well as further assist in deepening the investor

support of Tower Bancorp Inc The listing also allows broader group of investors to become part of the mission of our

organization

Our progress and success can be attributed to number of key factors one in particular being our strong leadership team

which is the backbone of our organization With over 150 years of in-market experience in the financial services industry our

disciplined leadership team focuses on prudent lending and investment practices Our team is committed to the success of

our company and we could not imagine better team of leaders to move us forward

As we look to the future we will remain focused on what has built our success over the years and continue to concentrate

on the areas that we can control solid lending practices controlling expenses developing our employees and culture and

growing our relationships with our customers while continuing to provide them with uncompromising service We will look

at potential growth opportunities in our different markets that align with our strategic plan while staying committed to the

community banking model We feel that our company has very strong foundation and is in positive position for the future

Thank you for your continued commitment to Tower Bancorp Inc

Sincerely/%
Kermit Hicks Andrew Samuel

Chairman President and CEO

Tower Bancorp Inc 2008 Annual Report Page
_____



Established to provide the communities it serves with local banking

decision-making Tower Bancorp Inc NASDAQ TOBC is the parent

company of Graystone Tower Bank full-service community bank

operating 25 branch offices in central Pennsylvania and Maryland through

two divisions including Graystone Bank offices serving six counties

and 16 Tower Bank offices serving three counties With an asset size

of approximately $1.2 billion the companys unparalleled competitive

advantage is its 300 employees and strong corporate culture paired with

clear vision that has provided customers with uncompromising services

and individualized solutions for every financial need

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE OFFICE

112 Market Street

Harrisburg PA 17101

717 231-2700

TRANSFER AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company

10 Commerce Drive

Cranford NJ 07016

800 525-7686

LEADERSHIP TEAM

Janak Amin

Executive Vice President of Tower Bancorp Inc and President CEO of

Graystone Bank Division

Carl Lundblad

Executive Vice President General Counsel of Tower Bancorp Inc

Mark Merrill

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc

Jeff Renninger

Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc

Andrew Samuel

President and Chief Executive Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc

Jeff Shank

Executive Vice President of Tower Bancorp Inc and President CEO of

Tower Bank Division

Jane Tompkins

Executive Vice President Chief Credit Officer of Tower Bancorp Inc

DIRECTORS

Patricia Carbaugh

Administrative Assistant of John Grove Medical Center

James Craig Jr

Retired dentist

John DiSanto

President of Triple Crown Corporation

Marcus Faust

Private investor

Frederic Frederick

Partner in engineering firm of Frederick Seibert Associates Inc

Mark Gayman

Owner of Gaymere Farms

Kermit Hicks

Chairman of the Board and Owner of Hicks Chevrolet Inc

Harry Johnston

Physician

Jeffrey Lehman

President and CEO of Shanks Extracts Inc

Kenneth Lehman

Private investor and attorney

Charles Pearson Jr

Retired bank President and CEO

Michael Peck

President and CEO of MPC Industries LLC

Robert Poole Jr

Chairman President and CEO of SA Homes Inc

Terry Randall

President and CEO of Mellott Enterprises Inc

Andrew Samuel

President and CEO of Tower Bancorp Inc

Hasu Shah

Foundec Chairman and CEO of the Hersha Group

Jeff Shank

Executive Vice President of Tower Bancorp Inc and President CEO of

Tower Bank

Klare Sunderland

President of Sun Enterprises Inc
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BRANCH NETWORK

GRAYSTONE
BANK--

State College

Camp Hill

Messiah College

Harrisburg

Linglestown

Granite Run

Meadow Brook

Lancaster Business Center

Ephrata

Lebanon LPO
York

TOWER
-BANK

Chambersburg

Fort Loudon

Greencastle

Mercersburg

Waynesboro

McConnellsburg

Needmore

Hagerstown MD

Hancock MD

GRAYSTONE
-MORTGAGE

Mechanicsburg

Lancaster

State College

Greencastle

Waynesboro

Hagerstown MD
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Item Business

History and Business

Tower Bancorp Inc Tower or the Corporation is bank holding company

registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended Tower was organized

on October 12 1983 under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the purpose

of acquiring The First National Bank of Greencastle Greencastle Pennsylvania First

and such other banks and bank related activities as are permitted by law and desirable

On June 1984 Tower acquired 100% ownership of The First National Bank of Greencastle

issuing 159753 shares of Towers common stock to the former First shareholders On

June 2006 Tower completed the acquisition of FNB Financial Corporation

McConnellsburg Pennsylvania FNB Financial Corporation was merged into Tower Bancorp

Inc whereby FNB Financial Corporations wholly-owned subsidiary the First National Bank

of McConnellsburg became the whollyowned subsidiary of Tower This transaction was

accounted for in accordance with SFAS No 141 Business Combinations In the merger

FNB shareholders received either 0.8663 shares of Tower common stock for each share of

FNB common stock or 39.00 in cash for each share held depending on shareholder

elections and subject to the allocation provisions of the Merger Agreement FNB

Financial Corporations shareholders received an aggregate of 640381 shares of Towers

common stock and 2.363 million in cash in exchange for all outstanding common shares

On August 26 2006 The First National Bank of McConnellsburg was merged with and into

The First National Bank of Greencastle

On November 12 2008 Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone Financial Corp

entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger the Merger Agreement pursuant to which

Graystone Financial Corp will merge with and into Tower Bancorp Inc In the merger

Graystone shareholders will receive 0.42 shares of Tower coon stock for each share of

Graystone common stock they hold on the effective date of the merger Following the

transaction current Tower shareholders will own approximately 45% and Graystone

shareholders will own approximately 55% of the combined companys coon stock The

shareholders of both entities have approved the combination Pending final regulatory

approvals the merger is expected to be completed on or about April 2009

The Corporation files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC in the form of lOQs quarterly reports 10K annual report annual

proxy statements and Form 8K for any significant events that may arise during the year

Copies of the Corporations filings may be obtained free of charge through the SECs

internet site at http//www.sec.gOv The Corporations annual report on Form 10K can

also be obtained free of charge by accessing the Corporations website at www.fnbgc.com
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2008

Commission file number Q---i-8Q6

Washk4
TOWER BANCORP INC 101

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Pennsylvania 251445946
State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer
Incorporation or organization Identification No
Center Square Greencastle Pennsylvania 17225
Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including
area code 717 5972137

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act

Title of each class

Common Stock no Par Value The Common Stock is not

registered on any exchange

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well known seasoned issuer as defined in
Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file report pursuant to
Section 13 or 15d of the Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be
filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding
12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 daysYes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of
Regulation SK is not contained herein and will not be contained to the best of
Registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10K

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is large accelerated filer an
accelerated filer nonaccelerated filer or smaller reporting company See
definition of accelerated filer large accelerated filer and smaller reporting company
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Check one

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Nonaccelerated filer
Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b2
of the Exchange Act Yes No

As of June 30 2008 2315793 shares of the registrants common stock were outstanding
The aggregate market value of such shares held by nonaffiliates on that date was

76164000 As of December 31 2008 there were 2315480 shares outstanding



DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the annual shareholders report for the year ended December 31 2008 are

incorporated by reference into Parts and II Portions of the Proxy Statement for the

2009 Annual Meeting of Security Holders are incorporated by reference in Part III of this

Form 10K



Copies of the Corporations filings are also available to be read and copied at the SECs

Public Reference Room at 100 Street Washington DC 20549 Information on the

operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at l800SEC-

0330

Towers primary activity consists of owning and supervising its subsidiary

The First National Bank of Greencastle which is engaged in providing banking and bank

related services in South Central Pennsylvania principally Franklin County where its

sixteen branches are located in Quincy Shady Grove Waynesboro Mercersburg

Chambersburg Launch Rouzerville McConnellsburg Needmore and Fort Loudon

Pennsylvania Hancock and Hagerstown Maryland as well as its main office in

Greencastle Pennsylvania The dayto-day management of First is conducted by the

subsidiarys officers Tower derives the majority of its current income from First

Tower has no employees other than its three officers who are also employees

of First its subsidiary On December 31 2008 First had 164 fulltime and 24 parttime

employees

Tower contemplates that in the future it will evaluate and may acquire or

may cause its subsidiaries to acquire other banks Tower also may seek to enter

businesses closely related to banking or to acquire existing companies already engaged in

such activities Any acquisition by Tower will require prior approval of the Board of

Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and in

some instances other regulatory agencies and its shareholders

Business of First

First was organized as national bank in 1983 as part of an agreement and

plan of merger between Tower and The First National Bank of Greencastle the predecessor

of First under which First became wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower As indicated

First is the successor to The First National Bank of Greencastle which was originally

organized in 1864

First is engaged in commercial banking as authorized by the National Bank

Act This involves accepting demand time and savings deposits and granting loans

consumer commercial real estate business to individuals corporations partnerships

associations municipalities and other governmental bodies

First grants agribusiness commercial and residential loans to customers

throughout the Cumbenland Valley area Franklin and Fulton Counties Pennsylvania and

Washington County Maryland It maintains diversified loan portfolio and evaluates

each customers credit-worthiness on case-bycase basis The amount of collateral

obtained if deemed necessary upon the extension of credit is based on managements

credit evaluation of the customer Collateral held varies but generally includes

-2



equipment and real estate The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth on

the face of the balance sheet page of the Annual Report to Shareholders

In 2000 First entered into an affiliation agreement with Sentry Trust

Company Pennsylvania Limited Purpose Bank Sentry whereby Sentry acquired from

First the right to service the trust accounts of First Through this affiliation

agreement trust and other financial services were provided to Firsts customers by

Sentry In 2006 First reacquired from Sentry the right to service the trust accounts of

First First reestablished Trust Department in the third quarter of 2006

As of December 31 2008 First had totai assets of approximately 540

million total shareholders equity of approximately 63 million and total deposits of

approximately 421 million

Regulation and Supervision

Tower is bank holding company within the meaning of the Bank Holding

Company Act of 1956 BHC Act and is registered as such with the Board of Governors of

the Federal Reserve System FRB As registered bank holding company the parent

company is required to file with the FRB certain reports and information Tower is also

subject to examination by the FRB and is restricted in its acquisitions certain of which

are subject to approval by the FRB In addition the parent company would be required to

obtain the approval of the Pennsylvania State Banking Department in order for it to

acquire certain bank and noribank subsidiaries

Under the BHC Act bank holding company is with limited exceptions

prohibited from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of

the voting shares of any company which is not bank or ii engaging in any activity

other than managing or controlling banks With the prior approval of the FRB however

bank holding company may own shares of company engaged in activities which the FRB

determines to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be

proper incident thereto In addition federal law imposes certain restrictions on

transactions between Tower and its subsidiary First As an affiliate of First Tower is

subject with certain exceptions to provisions of federal law imposing limitations on

and requiring collateral for extensions of credit by First to its affiliates

The operations of First are subject to federal and state statutes applicable

to banks chartered under the banking laws of the United States to members of the Federal

Reserve System and to banks whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation Bank operations are also subject to regulations of the Office of the

Comptroller of the Currency the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation



The primary supervisory authority of First is the Office of the Comptroller

of the Currency 0CC who regularly examines such areas as reserves loans

investments management practices and other aspects of bank operations These

examinations are designed primarily for the protection of Firsts depositors

Federal and state banking laws and regulations govern among other things
the scope of banks business the investments bank may make the reserves against

deposits bank must maintain the loans bank makes and collateral it takes the

maximum interest rates bank may pay on deposits the activities of bank with respect

to mergers and consolidations and the establishment of branches and management

practices and other aspects of banking operations See Note 20 of the Notes to Financial

Statements Exhibit 13 for discussion of the limitations on the availability of

Towers subsidiarys undistributed earnings for the payment of dividends due to such

regulation and other reasons

The Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989

FIRREA provides among other things that financial institution insured by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC sharing common ownership with failed

institution can be required to indemnify the FDIC for its losses resulting from the

insolvency of the failed institution even if such indemnification causes the affiliated

institution also to become insolvent Tower currently has only one subsidiary insured by

the FDIC and as result has not been significantly affected by the aforementioned

provisions of FIRREA

The DCC issued guidelines which effective December 31 1990 imposed upon

national banks risk-based capital and leverage standards These capital requirements of

bank regulators are discussed in Note 20 of the notes to financial statements Failure

to meet applicable capital guidelines could subject national bank to variety of

enforcement remedies available to the federal regulatory authorities Depending upon

circumstances the regulatory agencies may require an institution to surpass minimum

capital ratios established by the DCC and the FRB

In December 1991 the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act

of 1991 FDICIA was enacted FDICIA contains provisions limiting activities and

business methods of depository institutions FDICIA requires the primary federal banking

regulators to promulgate regulations setting forth standards relating to among other

things internal controls and audit systems credit underwriting and loan documentation

interest rate exposure and other offbalance sheet assets and liabilities and

compensation of directors and officers FDICIA also provides for expanded regulation of

depository institutions and their affiliates including parent holding companies by such

institutions primary federal banking regulator Each primary federal banking regulator

is required to specify by regulation capital standards for measuring the capital

adequacy of the depository institutions it supervises and depending upon the extent to



which depository institution does not meet such capital adequacy measures the primary

federal banking regulator may prohibit such institution from paying dividends or may

require such institution to take other steps to become adequately capitalized

FDICIA establishes five capital tiers ranging from well capitalized to

critically undercapitalized depository institution is well capitalized if it

significantly exceeds the minimum level required by regulation for each relevant capital

measure Under FDICIA an institution that is not well capitalized is generally

prohibited from accepting brokered deposits and offering interest rates on deposits

higher than the prevailing rate in its market in addition pass through insurance

coverage may not be available for certain employee benefit accounts FDICIA also

requires an undercapitalized depository institution to submit an acceptable capital

restoration plan to the appropriate federal bank regulatory agency One requisite

element of such plan is that the institutions parent holding company must guarantee

compliance by the institution with the plan subject to certain limitations In the

event of the parent holding companys bankruptcy the guarantee and any other

commitments that the parent holding company has made to federal bank regulators to

maintain the capital of its depository institution subsidiaries would be assumed by the

bankruptcy trustee and entitled to priority in payment

Based on their respective regulatory capital ratios at December 31 2008 the

Bank is considered well capitalized based on the definitions in the regulations issued

by the Federal Reserve Board and the other federal bank regulatory agencies setting forth

the general capital requirements mandated by FDICIA See Capital Funds in managements

discussion and analysis in Towers annual report as shown in Item

federal depositor preference statute was enacted in 1993 providing that

deposits and certain claims for administrative expenses and employee compensation against

an insured depository institution would be afforded priority over other general claims

against such an institution including federal funds and letters of credit in the

liquidation or other resolution of such an institution by any receiver

Other Federal Laws and Regulations

Our operations are subject to additional federal laws and regulations

applicable to financial institutions including without limitation

Privacy provisions of the GrammLeachBliley Act and related regulations
which require us to maintain privacy policies intended to safeguard

customer financial information to disclose the policies to our customers

and to allow customers to opt out of having their financial service

providers disclose their confidential financial information to non

affiliated third parties subject to certain exceptions

Right to Financial Privacy Act which imposes duty to maintain

confidentiality of consumer financial records and prescribes procedures

for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records



Consumer protection rules for the sale of insurance products by depository
institutions adopted pursuant to the requirements of the GrammLeach
Bliley Act and

USA Patriot Act which requires financial institutions to take certain
actions to help prevent detect and prosecute international money
laundering and the financing of terrorism

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

On July 30 2002 President Bush signed into law the SarbanesOxley Act of

2002 The SarbanesOxley Act represents comprehensive revision of laws affecting

corporate governance accounting obligations and corporate reporting The SarbanesOxley
Act is applicable to all companies with equity securities registered or that file reports

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In particular the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

establishes new requirements for audit committees including independence

expertise and responsibilities ii additional responsibilities regarding financial

statements for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting

company iii new standards for auditors and regulation of audits iv increased

disclosure and reporting obligations for the reporting company and its directors and

executive officers and mew and increased civil and criminal penalties for violations

of the securities laws Many of the provisions were effective immediately while other

provisions become effective over period of time and are subject to rulemaking by the

SEC Because the Corporations common stock is registered with the SEC it is currently

subject to this Act

The earnings of First and therefore the earnings of Tower are affected by

general economic conditions management policies and the legislative and governmental

actions of various regulatory authorities including the FRB the 0CC and the FDIC

In addition to banking and securities laws regulations and regulatory

agencies the Corporation also is subject to various other laws regulations and

regulatory agencies throughout the United States Furthermore various proposals bills

and regulations have been and are being considered in the United States Congress and

various other governmental regulatory and legislative bodies which could result in

changes in the profitability and governance of the Corporation It cannot be predicted
whether mew legislation or regulations will be adopted and if so how they would affect

the Corporation

Recent Developments

The global and U.S economies are experiencing significantly reduced business

activity as result of among other factors disruptions in the financial system during

the past year Dramatic declines in the housing market during the past year with falling

home prices and increasing foreclosures and unemployment have resulted in significant

writedowns of asset values by financial institutions including governmentsponsored



entities and major commercial and investment banks These writedowns initially of

mortgage-backed securities but spreading to credit default swaps and other derivative

securities have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital to merge

with larger and stronger institutions and in some cases to fail

Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and

the strength of counterparties many lenders and institutional investors have reduced

and in some cases ceased to provide funding to borrowers including other financial

institutions The availability of credit confidence in the financial sector and level

of volatility in the financial markets have been significantly adversely affected as

result In recent weeks volatility and disruption in the capital and credit markets has

reached unprecedented levels In some cases the markets have produced downward pressure

on stock prices and credit capacity for certain issuers without regard to those issuers

underlying financial strength

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and

financial markets and going concern threats to investment banks and other financial

institutions on October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 the

EESA was signed into law Pursuant to the EESA the U.S Treasury will have the

authority to among other things purchase up to $700 billion of mortgages mortgage-

backed securities and certain other financial instruments from financial institutions for

the purpose of stabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.S financial markets The

EESA included provision for temporary increase in FDIC insurance from 100000 to

$250000 per depositor through December 31 2009

On October 14 2008 Secretary Paulson after consulting with the Federal

Reserve and the FOIC announced that the Department of the Treasury will purchase equity

stakes in wide variety of banks and thrifts Under this program known as the Troubled

Asset Relief Program TARP Capital Purchase Program from the 700 billion authorized

by the EESA the Treasury will make 250 billion of capital available to U.S financial

institutions in the form of preferred stock In conjunction with the purchase of

preferred stock the Treasury will receive warrants to purchase common stock with an

aggregate market price equal to 15% of the preferred investment Participating financial

Institutions will be required to adopt the Treasurys standards for executive

compensation and corporate governance for the period during which the Treasury holds

equity issued under TARP Capital Purchase Program

Also on October 14 2008 after receiving recommendation from the boards of

the FDIC and the Federal Reserve and consulting with the President Secretary Paulson

signed the systemic risk exception to the FDIC Act enabling the FDIC to temporarily

provide 100% guarantee of the senior debt of all FOIC-Insured institutions and their

holding companies the Debt Guarantee Program as well as deposits in noninterest

bearing transaction deposit accounts the Transaction Account Guarantee Program under

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program Coverage under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee



Program was available until November 12 2008 without charge and thereafter at cost of

75 basis points per annum for senior unsecured debt and 10 basis points per annum for

noninterest bearing transaction deposits The Corporation has elected to not

participate in the TARP Capital Purchase Program or the Debt Guarantee Program The

Corporation opted into the Transaction Account Guarantee Program

It is not clear at this time what impact the EESA TARP Capital Purchase

Program the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program other liquidity and funding

initiatives of the Federal Reserve and other agencies that have been previously
announced and any additional programs that may be initiated in the future will have on

the financial markets and the other difficulties described above including the extreme

levels of volatility and limited credit availability currently being experienced or on

the U.S banking and financial industries and the broader U.S and global economies

Further adverse effects could have an adverse effect on the Corporation and its business

References under the caption Supervision and Regulation to applicable

statutes regulations and orders are brief summaries of portions thereof which do not

purport to be complete and which are qualified in their entirety by reference thereto

Important Factors Relating to Forward Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides safe harbor
for forwardlooking statements to encourage companies to provide prospective information

about their companies without fear of litigation so long as those statements are

identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements

identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from

those projected in such statements In connection with certain statements made in this

report and those that may be made in the future by or on behalf of the Corporation which

are identified as forward-looking statements the Corporation notes that the following

important factors among others could cause actual results to differ materially from

those set forth in any such forwardlooking statements Further such forwardlooking
statements speak only as of the date on which such statement or statements are made and

the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or

statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is

made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events



The business and profitability of financial services organization such as

the Corporation is influenced by prevailing economic conditions and governmental

policies The actions and policy directives of the Federal Reserve Board determine to

significant degree the cost and the availability of funds obtained from money market

sources for lending and investing Federal Reserve Board policies and regulations also

influence directly and indirectly the rates of interest paid by commercial banks on

their interestbearing deposits and may also impact the value of financial instruments

held by the Corporation The nature and impact on the Corporation of future changes in

economic and market conditions and monetary and fiscal policies both foreign and

domestic are not predictable and are beyond the Corporations control In addition

these conditions and policies can impact the Corporations customers and counterparties

which may increase the risk of default on their obligations to the Corporation and its

affiliates They can also affect the competitive conditions in the markets and products

within which the Corporation operates which can have an adverse impact on the

Corporations ability to maintain its revenue streams

As part of its ongoing business the Corporation assumes financial exposures

to interest rates currencies equities and other financial products In doing so the

Corporation is subject to unforeseen events which may not have been anticipated or which

may have effects which exceed those assumed within its risk management processes This

risk can be accentuated by volatility and reduction in liquidity in those markets which

in turn can impact the Corporations ability to hedge and trade the positions concerned

In addition the Corporation is dependent on its ability to access the financial markets

for its funding needs

As noted in Supervision and Regulation the Corporation is regulated by and

subject to various regulators The actions of these regulators can have an impact on the

profitability and governance of the Corporation Increases by regulatory authorities of

minimum capital reserve deposit insurance and other financial viability requirements

can also affect the Corporations profitability

The Corporation is subject to operational and control risk which is the

potential for loss caused by breakdown in communication information processing and

settlement systems or processes or lack of compliance with the procedures on which they

rely either within the Corporation or within the broader financial systems

infrastructure

As with any financial institution the Corporation is also subject to the

risk of litigation and to an unexpected or adverse outcome in such litigation

Competitive pressures in the marketplace and unfavorable or adverse publicity and news

coverage can have the effect of lessening customer demand for the Corporations services

Ultimately the Corporations businesses and its success are dependent on the

Corporations ability to attract and retain high quality employees



Competition

Firsts principal market area consists of Franklin and Fulton Counties

Pennsylvania and the northcentral and northwest portions of Washington County Maryland

It services substantial number of depositors in this market area with the greatest

concentration within limited radius of Greencastle Pennsylvania

First like other depository institutions has been subjected to competition

from less heavily regulated entities such as brokerage firms money market funds

consumer finance and credit card companies and other commercial banks many of which are

larger than First First is generally competitive with all competing financial

institutions in its service area with respect to interest rates paid on time and savings

deposits service charges on deposit accounts and interest rates charged on loans

The Corporation files periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC in the form of l0-Qs quarterly reports 10K annual report 14A

annual proxy statements and Form 8-K for any significant events that may arise during the

year Copies of the Corporations filings may be obtained through the SECs internet

site at www.sec.gov or may be obtained free of charge upon written request furnished to

Mr Franklin Klink III CFO Tower Bancorp Inc Box Center Square

Greencastle Pennsylvania 17225

Item la Risk Factors

An investment in the Corporations common stock is subject to risks inherent

to the Corporations business The material risks and uncertainties that management

believes affect the Corporation are described below Before making an investment

decision you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below

together with all of the other information included or incorporated by reference in this

report The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the

Corporation Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or

focused on or that management currently deems immaterial may also impair the

Corporations business operations This report is qualified in its entirety by these

risk factors

If any of the following risks actually occur the Corporations financial

condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected If this

were to happen the value of the Corporations common stock could decline significantly

and you could lose all or part of your investment
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Risks Related To The Corporations Business

The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk

The Corporations earnings and cash flows are largely dependent upon its net

interest income Net interest income is the difference between interest income earned on

interestearning assets such as loans and securities and interest expense paid on

interestbearing liabilities such as deposits and borrowed funds Interest rates are

highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond the Corporations control including

general economic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies

and in particular the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System Changes in

monetary policy including changes in interest rates could influence not only the

interest the Corporation receives on loans and securities and the amount of interest it

pays on deposits and borrowings but such changes could also affect the Corporations

ability to originate loans and obtain deposits ii the fair value of the Corporations

financial assets and liabilities and iii the average duration of the Corporations

mortgagebacked securities portfolio If the interest rates paid on deposits and other

borrowings increase at faster rate than the interest rates received on loans and other

investments the Corporations net interest income and therefore earnings could be

adversely affected Earnings could also be adversely affected if the interest rates

received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the interest rates paid on

deposits and other borrowings

Although management believes it has implemented effective asset and liability

management strategies to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on the

Corporations results of operations any substantial unexpected prolonged change in

market interest rates could have material adverse effect on the Corporations financial

condition and results of operations

The soundness of other financial institutions may adversely affect us

Financial services institutions are interrelated as result of trading

clearing counterparty or other relationships The Corporation has exposure to many

different industries and counterparties and routinely executes transactions with

counterparties in the financial services industry including commercial banks brokers

and dealers investment banks and other institutional clients Many of these

transactions expose the Corporation to credit risk in the event of default by

counterparty or client In addition the Corporations credit risk may be exacerbated

when the collateral held by the Corporation cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at

prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the credit or derivative exposure due

to the Corporation Any such losses could have material adverse affect on the

Corporations financial condition and results of operations
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Current levels of market volatility are unprecedented and may have materially adverse

effects on our liquidity and financial condition

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and

disruption for more than 12 months In recent weeks the volatility and disruption have

reached unprecedented levels In some cases the markets have exerted downward pressure

on stock prices security prices and credit capacity for certain issuers without regard

to those issuers underlying financial strength If the current levels of market

disruption and volatility continue or worsen there can be no assurance that we will not

experience adverse effects which may be material on our liquidity financial condition

and profitability

The Corporation is subject to lending risk

There are inherent risks associated with the Corporations lending

activities These risks include among other things the impact of changes in interest

rates and changes in the economic conditions in the markets where the Corporation

operates as well as those across the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the United States

Increases in interest rates and/or weakening economic conditions could adversely impact

the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans or the value of the collateral

securing these loans The Corporation is also subject to various laws and regulations

that affect its lending activities Failure to comply with applicable laws and

regulations could subject the Corporation to regulatory enforcement action that could

result in the assessment of significant civil money penalties against the Corporation

As of December 31 2008 approximately 6% of the Corporations loan portfolio

consisted of commercial and industrial loans These types of loans are generally viewed

as having more risk of default than residential real estate loans or consumer loans

These types of loans are also typically larger than residential real estate loans and

consumer loans Because the Corporations loan portfolio contains significant number of

commercial and industrial loans with relatively large balances the deterioration of one

or few of these loans could cause significant increase in nonperforming loans An

increase in nonperforming loans could result in net loss of earnings from these loans

an increase in the provision for possible loan losses and an increase in loan charge

offs all of which could have material adverse effect on the Corporations financial

condition and results of operations

If the Corporations allowance for loan losses is not sufficient to cover actual loan

losses its earnings could decrease

The Corporations loan customers may not repay their loans according to the

terms of their loans and the collateral securing the payment of their loans may be

insufficient to assure repayment The Corporation may experience significant credit

12



losses which could have material adverse effect on its operating results The

Corporation makes various assumptions and judgments about the coliectability of its loan

portfolio including the creditworthiness of its borrowers and the value of the real

estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of many of its loans In

determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses the Corporation reviews its

loans and its loss and delinquency experience and the Corporation evaluates economic

conditions If its assumptions prove to be incorrect its allowance for loan losses may

not cover inherent losses in its loan portfolio at the date of its financial statements

Material additions to the Corporations allowance would materially decrease its net

income At December 31 2008 its allowance for loan losses totaled 4597000

representing 1.10% of its total loans

Although the Corporation believes it has underwriting standards to manage

normal lending risks it is difficult to assess the future performance of its loan

portfolio due to the relatively recent origination of many of these loans The

Corporation can give you no assurance that its non-performing loans will not increase or

that its nonperforming or delinquent loans will not adversely affect its future

performance

In addition federal and state regulators periodically review the

Corporations allowance for loan losses and may require it to increase its allowance for

loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs Any increase in its allowance for loan

losses or loan charqe-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could have material

adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition

The Corporation is subject to environmental liability risk associated with lending

activi ties

significant portion of the Corporations loan portfolio is secured by real

property During the ordinary course of business the Corporation may foreclose on and

take title to properties securing certain loans In doing so there is risk that

hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these properties If hazardous or toxic

substances are found the Corporation may be liable for remedlation costs as well as for

personal injury and property damage Environmental laws may require the Corporation to

incur substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affected propertys value or

limit the Corporations ability to use or sell the affected property In addition future

laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing

laws may increase the Corporations exposure to environmental liability Although the

Corporation has policies and procedures to perform an environmental review before

initiating any foreclosure action on real property these reviews may not be sufficient

to detect all potential environmental hazards The remediation costs and any other

financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have material

adverse effect on the Corporations financial condition and results of operations
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The Corporations profitability depends significantly on economic conditions in the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

The Corporations success depends primarily on the general economic

conditions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the specific local markets in which

the Corporation operates Unlike larger national or other regional banks that are more

geographically diversified the Corporation provides banking and financial services to

customers primarily in the Franklin and Fulton Counties Pennsylvania and Washington

County Maryland area The local economic conditions in these areas have significant

impact on the demand for the Corporations products and services as well as the ability

of the Corporations customers to repay loans the value of the collateral securing loans

and the stability of the Corporations deposit funding sources significant decline in

general economic conditions caused by inflation recession acts of terrorism outbreak

of hostilities or other international or domestic occurrences unemployment changes in

securities markets or other factors could impact these local economic conditions and in

turn have material adverse effect on the Corporations financial condition and results

of operations

Competition from other financial institutions may adversely affect the Corporations

profitability

The Corporations banking subsidiary faces substantial competition in

originating both commercial and consumer loans This competition comes principally from

other banks savings institutions mortgage banking companies and other lenders Many of

its competitors enjoy advantages including greater financial resources and higher

lending limits wider geographic presence more accessible branch office locations the

ability to offer wider array of services or more favorable pricing alternatives as

well as lower origination and operating costs This competition could reduce the

Corporations net income by decreasing the number and size of loans that its banking

subsidiary originate and the interest rates they may charge on these loans

In attracting business and consumer deposits its banking subsidiary faces

substantial competition from other insured depository institutions such as banks savings

institutions and credit unions as well as institutions offering uninsured investment

alternatives including money market funds Many of the Corporations competitors enjoy

advantages including greater financial resources more aggressive marketing campaigns
better brand recognition and more convenient branch locations These competitors may

offer higher interest rates than the Corporation which could decrease the deposits that

it attracts or require it to increase its rates to retain existing deposits or attract

new deposits Increased deposit competition could adversely affect the Corporations

ability to generate the funds necessary for lending operations As result it may need

to seek other sources of funds that may be more expensive to obtain and could increase

its cost of funds
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The Corporations banking subsidiary also competes with nonbank providers of

financial services such as brokerage firms consumer finance companies credit unions

insurance agencies and governmental organizations which may offer more favorable terms

Some of its nonbank competitors are not subject to the same extensive regulations that

govern its banking operations As result such nonbank competitors may have advantages

over the Corporations banking subsidiary in providing certain products and services

This competition may reduce or limit its margins on banking services reduce its market

share and adversely affect its earnings and financial condition

The Corporation is subject to extensive government regulation and supervision

The Corporation primarily through the Bank is subject to extensive federal

and state regulation and supervision Banking regulations are primarily intended to

protect depositors funds federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as

whole not shareholders These regulations affect the Corporations lending practices

capital structure investment practices dividend policy and growth among other things

Congress and federal regulatory agencies continualiy review banking laws regulations and

policies for possible changes Changes to statutes regulations or regulatory policies

including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes regulations or

policies could affect the Corporation in substantial and unpredictable ways Such

changes could subject the Corporation to additional costs limit the types of financial

services and products the Corporation may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks

to offer competing financial services and products among other things Failure to comply

with laws regulations or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies

civil money penalties and/or reputation damage which could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations business financial condition and results of operations

While the Corporation has policies and procedures designed to prevent any such

violations there can be no assurance that such violations will not occur

The Corporations controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented

Management regularly reviews and updates the Corporations Internal controls

disclosure controls and procedures and corporate governance policies and procedures Any

system of controls however well designed and operated is based in part on certain

assumptions and can provide only reasonable not absolute assurances that the objectives

of the system are met Any failure or circumvention of the Corporations controls and

procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to controls and procedures could

have material adverse effect on the Corporations business results of operations and

financial condition
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New lines of business or new products and services may subject the Corporation to

additional risks

From time to time the Corporation may implement new lines of business or

offer new products and services within existing lines of business There are substantial

risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts particularly in instances where

the markets are not fully developed In developing and marketing new lines of business

and/or new products and services the Corporation may invest significant time and

resources Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new lines of

business and/or new products or services may not be achieved and price and profitability

targets may not prove feasible External factors such as compliance with regulations
competitive alternatives and shifting market preferences may also impact the successful

implementation of new line of business or new product or service Furthermore any

new line of business and/or new product or service could have significant impact on the

effectiveness of the Corporations system of internal controls Failure to successfully

manage these risks in the development and implementation of new lines of business or new

products or services could have material adverse effect on the Corporations business
results of operations and financial condition

The Corporations ability to pay dividends depends primarily on dividends from its

banking subsidiary which is subject to regulatory limits

The Corporation is bank holding company and its operations are conducted by

its subsidiary Its ability to pay dividends depends on its receipt of dividends from its

subsidiary Dividend payments from its banking subsidiary are subject to legal and

regulatory limitations generally based on net profits and retained earnings imposed by

the various banking regulatory agencies The ability of its subsidiary to pay dividends

is also subject to its profitability financial condition capital expenditures and other

cash flow requirements There is no assurance that its subsidiary will be able to pay
dividends in the future or that the Corporation will generate adequate cash flow to pay
dividends in the future The Corporations failure to pay dividends on its common stock

could have material adverse effect on the market price of its common stock

The Corporations future acquisitions could dilute your ownership and may cause it to

become more susceptible to adverse economic events

The Corporation may use its common stock to acquire other companies or make

investments in banks and other complementary businesses with its common stock in the

future The Corporation may issue additional shares of common stock to pay for future

acquisitions which would dilute your ownership interest in the Corporation Future

business acquisitions could be material to the Corporation and the degree of success

achieved in acquiring and integrating these businesses into the Corporation could have

material effect on the value of the Corporations common stock In addition any

acquisition could require it to use substantial cash or other liquid assets or to incur

debt In those events it could become more susceptible to economic downturns and

competitive pressures
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The Corporation may not be able to attract and retain skilled people

The Corporations success depends in large part on its ability to attract

and retain key people Competition for the best people in most activities engaged in by

the Corporation can be intense and the Corporation may not be able to hire people or to

retain them The unexpected loss of services of one or more of the Corporations key

personnel could have material adverse impact on the Corporations business because of

their skills knowledge of the Corporations market years of industry experience and the

difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel The Corporation does not

currently have employment agreements or non-competition agreements with any of its senior

officers

The Corporations information systems may experience an interruption or breach in

security

The Corporation relies heavily on communications and information systems to

conduct its business Any failure interruption or breach in security of these systems

could result in failures or disruptions in the Corporations customer relationship

management general ledger deposit loan and other systems While the Corporation has

policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure

interruption or security breach of its information systems there can be no assurance

that any such failures interruptions or security breaches will not occur or if they do

occur that they will be adequately addressed The occurrence of any failures

interruptions or security breaches of the Corporations information systems could damage

the Corporations reputation result in loss of customer business subject the

Corporation to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose the Corporation to civil

litigation and possible financial liability any of which could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations financial condition and results of operations

The Corporation continually encounters technological change

The financial services industry is continually undergoing rapid technological

change with frequent introductions of new technology-driven products and services The

effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to

better serve customers and to reduce costs The Corporations future success depends in

part upon its ability to address the needs of its customers by using technology to

provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands as well as to create

additional efficiencies in the Corporations operations Many of the Corporations

competitors have substantially greater resources to invest in technological improvements

The Corporation may not be able to effectively implement new technologydriven products

and services or be successful in marketing these products and services to its customers

Failure to successfully keep pace with technological change affecting the financial

services industry could have material adverse impact on the Corporations business and

in turn the Corporations financial condition and results of operations
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The Corporation is subject to claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary

responsibility

From time to time customers make claims and take legal actiom pertaining to

the Corporations performance of its fiduciary responsibilities Whether customer claims

and legal action related to the Corporations performance of its fiduciary

responsibilities are founded or unfounded if such claims and legal actions are not

resolved in manner favorable to the Corporation they may result in significant

financial liability and/or adversely affect the market perception of the Corporation and

its products and services as well as impact customer demand for those products and

services Any financial liability or reputation damage could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations business which in turn could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations financial condition and results of operations

Severe weather natural disasters acts of war or terrorism and other external events

could significantly impact the Corporations business

Severe weather natural disasters acts of war or terrorism and other adverse

external events could have significant impact on the Corporations ability to conduct

business Such events could affect the stability of the Corporations deposit base
impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans impair the value of

collateral securing loans cause significant property damage result in loss of revenue

and/or cause the Corporation to incur additional expenses Severe weather or natural

disasters acts of war or terrorism or other adverse external events may occur in the

future Although management has established disaster recovery policies and procedures
the occurrence of any such event could have material adverse effect on the

Corporations business which in turn could have material adverse effect on the

Corporations financial condition and results of operations

Risks Associated With The Corporations Common Stock

The Corporations stock price can be volatile

Stock price volatility may make it more difficult for you to resell your

common stock when you want and at prices you find attractive The Corporations stock

price can fluctuate significantly in response to variety of factors including among
other things

Actual or anticipated variations in quarterly results of operations

Recommendations by securities analysts

Operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors
deem comparable to the Corporation

News reports relating to trends concerns and other issues in the
financial services industry
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Perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Corporation and/or its

competitors

New technology used or services offered by competitors

Significant acquisitions or business combinations strategic partnerships

joint ventures or capital commitments by or involving the Corporation or

its competitors

Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize anticipated benefits from

acquisitions

Changes in government regulations

Geopolitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or military

conflicts

General market fluctuations industry factors and general economic and

political conditions and events such as economic slowdowns or recessions interest rate

changes or credit loss trends could also cause the Corporations stock price to decrease

regardless of operating results

The trading volume in the Corporations common stock is less than that of other larger

financial services companies

The Corporations common stock is listed for trading on OTCBB and the

trading volume in its common stock is less than that of other larger financial services

companies public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth liquidity

and orderliness depends on the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers

of the Corporations common stock at any given time This presence depends on the

individual decisions of investors and general economic and market conditions over which

the Corporation has no control Given the lower trading volume of the Corporations

common stock significant sales of the Corporations common stock or the expectation of

these sales could cause the Corporations stock price to fall

An investment in the Corporations common stock is not an insured deposit

The Corporations common stock is not bank deposit and therefore is not

insured against loss by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC any other

deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity Investment in the

Corporations common stock is inherently risky for the reasons described in this Risk

Factors section and elsewhere in this report and is subject to the same market forces

that affect the price of common stock in any company As result if you acquire the

Corporations common stock you may lose some or all of your investment

The Corporations Articles of Incorporation By-Laws and Shareholders Rights Plan as well

as certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effect

Provisions of the Corporations articles of incorporation and bylaws

federal banking laws including regulatory approval requirements and the Corporations

stock purchase rights plan could make it more difficult for third party to acquire the
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The Corporation is subject tc claims and litigaticn pertaining to fiduciary

responsibility

Scorn time to time customers make claims and take legal action pectaining to

the Corporations perfocmance of its fiduciary cesponsibilities Whether customec ciaims

and iegai actIon reisted to the Corporations performance of its fiduciary

responsibilities are founded or uniounded if such claims and legal actions are not

resolved in manner favorable to the Corporation they may result in significant

financial liability and/or adversely affect the market perception of the Corporation and

its products and services as well as impact customer demand for those products and

services Any financial liability or reputation damage could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations business which In turn could have material adverse

effect on the Corporations financial condition and results of operations

Severe weather natural disasters acts of war or terrorism and other external events

could significantly impact the Corporations business

Severe weather natural disasters arts of war or terrorism and other adverse

external events could have significant impact on the Corporations ability to conduct

business Surh events rould affect the stability of the Corporations deposit base
impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans impair the value of

collateral scouring loans cause significant property damage result In loss of revenue

and/or cause the Corporation to Incur additional expanses Severe weather or natural

disasters acts of war or terrorism or other adverse external events may occur in the

future Although management has established disaster recovery policies and procedures
the occurrence of any such event could hava material adverse affect on the

Corporations business which in turn could have material adverse affect on the

Corporations financial condition and results of operations

Risks Associated With The Corporations Common Stock

The Corporations stock price can be volatile

Stork price volatility may make it more difficult for you to resell your

common stock when you want and at prices you find attractive The Corporations stock

price can fluctuate significantly In response to variety of factors including among

other things

Actual or anticipated variations in guarteriy results of operations

Recommendations by securities analysts

Cparatlng and stock price performance of other companies that investors
deem comparable to the Corporation

News reports relating to trends concerns and other issues in the
financial services industry
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Corporation even if doing so would be perceived to be beneficial to the Corporations

shareholders The combination of these provisions effectively inhibits non-negotiated

merger or other business combination which in turn could adversely affect the market

price of the Corporations common stock

Risks Associated With The Corporations Industry

Future governmental regulation and legislation could limit the Corporations future

growth

The Corporation is registered bank holding company and its subsidiary bank

is depository institution whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation FDIC As result the Corporation is subject to various regulations and

examinations by various regulatory authorities In general statutes establish the

corporate governance and eligible business activities for the Corporation certain

acquisition and merger restrictions limitations on intercompany transactions such as

loans and dividends and capital adequacy requirements requirements for antimoney

laundering programs and other compliance matters among other regulations The

Corporation is extensively regulated under federal and state banking laws and regulations

that are intended primarily for the protection of depositors federal deposit insurance

funds and the banking system as whole Compliance with these statutes and regulations

is important to its ability to engage in new activities and to consummate additional

acquisitions

In addition the Corporation is subject to changes in federal and state tax

laws as well as changes in banking and credit regulations accounting principles and

governmental economic and monetary policies The Corporation cannot predict whether any

of these changes may adversely and materially affect it Federal and state banking

regulators also possess broad powers to take supervisory actions as they deem

appropriate These supervisory actions may result in higher capital requirements higher

insurance premiums and limitations on the Corporations activities that could have

material adverse effect on its business and profitability While these statutes are

generally designed to minimize potential loss to depositors and the FDIC insurance funds

they do not eliminate risk and compliance with such statutes increases the Corporations

expense requires managements attention and can be disadvantage from competitive

standpoint with respect to nonregulated competitors

The earnings of financial services companies are significantly affected by general

business and economic conditions

The Corporations operations and profitability are impacted by general

business and economic conditions in the United States and abroad These conditions

include short-term and long-term interest rates inflation money supply political

issues legislative and regulatory changes fluctuations in both debt and equity capital
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markets brrad trends in industry and flnenre and the strength nf the U.S economy and

the iorai eronomles in whirh the Corperation rperates au rf whirh are beyrnd the

Cnrporations crntrni Ueterinretinn in ernnomir renditirns cruid result in an increase

in iran delinguenries end nonperforming assets decreases in loan collateral values and

decrease in demand for the Corporations products and servires among other things any

of whirh rouid have material adverse impart on the Corporations finanrial rondition

and results of operations

Financial servires companies depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about

customers and counterpartles

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions the

Corporation may rely on information furnished by or on behalf of customers and

counterparties inciuding financial statements credit reports end other financial

information The Corporation may also reiy on representations of those customers

counterparties or other third parties such as independent auditors as to the accuracy

and compieteness of that information Reiiance on inaccurate or misleading tinancisi

statements credit reports or other financial information couid have materiai adverse

impact on the Corporations business and in turn the Corporations financial condition

and results of operations

Consumers may decide nct to use banks to complete their financial transactions

Technology and other changes are allowing parties to complete financial

transactions that historically have involved banks through alternative methods For

example consumers ran now maintain funds that would have historically been held as bank

deposits in brokerage accounts or mutual funds Consumers can also complete transactions

such as paying bills and/or transferring funds directly without the assistance of banks

The process of eilminating banks as intermediaries known as disintermediation could

result in the loss of fee income as well as the loss of customer deposits and the

related income generated from those deposits The loss of these revenue streams and the

lower cost deposits as source of funds could have material adverse effect on the

Corporations financial condition and results of operations

Item lb Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

First owns buildings at Center Sguere Sreencestle Pennsyivenle Its

corporate headguerters Shady Grove Pennsyivanie 4136 Lincoln Way West Launch

Snanch Chambersburg Pennsylvania Quincy Pennsylvania Waynesboro Pennsylvania

18P33 Maugans Avenue Hagerstown Maryland Lincoln Way Fast Chambersburg Pennsylvania

two in WcConnelisburg Pennsylvania Needmore Pennsylvania Fort Loudon Pennsylvania
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Rouzerville Pennsylvania Mercersburg Pennsylvania and Hancock Maryland In

addition First leases approximateiy 1880 square feet located at 488 Gateway Avenue

Chambersburq Pennsyivania and 3560 square feet located at 1101 Professional Court

Haqerstown Maryland Gffices of the hank are located in each of these buildings The

hanks call center is located in leased space at 1580 Buchanan Trail East Greencastle

Pennsylvania

Item Legal Proceedings

Tower is an occasional party to legal actions arising in the ordinary course

of its business In the opinion of Towers management Tower has adequate legal defenses

and/or insurance coverage respecting any and each of these actions and does not believe

that they will materially affect Towers operations or financial position

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None

22



Part II

Item Market for Registrants Common Stock Related Security Holder Matters

and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Towers common stock is not traded on national securities exchange but is

traded on the OTCBB under the symbol TOBC At December 31 2008 the approximate number

of shareholders of record was 1238 The price ranges for Tower common stock set forth

below are the approximate high and low bid prices obtained from brokers who make market

in the stock and dci not reflect prices in actual transactions

Period Dividends

Quarter .28

Quarter .28

3r5 Quarter .28

401 Quarter .28

l1 Quarter .26

210 Quarter .26

Quarter .26

40 Quarter .28

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total number of Maximum number

shares purchased of shares that

as part of may yet be

publicly purchased under

announced plan the plan

October 2008 33865

November 2008 33865

December 2008 _______ _______ ______ 33865

Total 33865

2008

2007

Market Price

38.25 41.50

37.10 39.45

28.50 38.50

19.00 32.00

43.70 44.75

43.15 44.75

42.10 44.25

41.10 42.50

Period

Total number of Average price

shares purchased paid per share

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

On September 13 2006 Tower Bancorp Inc announced stock repurchase plan approving

the purchase of up to 100000 shares as conditions allow The plan may be suspended at

any time without prior notice and has no prescribed time limit in which to fill the

authorized purchase amount As of December 31 2008 66135 shares have been purchased

under the program
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Shareholder Return Performance Graph

line graph is set forth below The graph compares the yearly change in the

cumulative total shareholder return on the Corporations stock against the cumulative

total return of the NASDAQ Composite and the Peer Group Index for the period of five

fiscal years commencing January 2004 and ended December 31 2008 The shareholder

return shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future performance

Tower Bancorp Inc
Total Return Performance

160

Tower Bancorp

140 DAQCompoiti
Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer
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100
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60
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12/31103 12f31/04 12/31/05 12131/06 12/31/07 12/31/08

Inx 12131103 12131104 12131105 12131I06 12131107 12131108

Tor I3ancorp Inc 10000 11167 12497 11966 11262 6367

NSIJAQ Corrpos 10010 10859 11008 12056 13239 1812
Md-AIIthc Cuskrn Peer Grcx 10000 11329 11325 11544 10789 8330
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The foilowing tabie discloses the number of outstanding options warrants and

rights granted by the Corporation to participants in equity compensation pians not

approved by shareholders as well as the number of securities remaining avaiiabie for

future issuance under these plans

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compansation Plans

Number of

Securities

Remaining

Number of Available for

Securities to be Future Issuance

Issued Upon Weighted Average Under Equity

Exercise of Exercise Price Compensation

Outstanding of Outstanding Plans Excluding

Options Options Securities

Warrants and Warrants and Reflected in

Rights Rights Column

Non-Qualified Stork Option Plan 200 1.00 34862

Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors 30508 36.52 52570

The Flist National Bank of Creencastle is the wholly-owned operating

subsidiary of Tower Bankcorp Inc As such our benefit plans are principally organized

at the bank levei
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Item Selected Financial Data

TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

SELECTED FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL DATA

Income 000 omitted

losses

Other operating income

Other operating expenses
Income before income

2007 2005 2004

Per share amounts are based on the following weighted average shares outstanding

2008 2316697
2007 2345286

2006 2103487
2005 1727055

2004 1727856

Interest income

Interest expense
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after

provision for loan

2008

30974
10290
1375

19309
4517

20224

33363
14 010

600

18753

6711
16096

2006

25799
9873

360

15566
7324

14040

taxes

Applicable income tax

Net income

16494
5152

270

11072
4802
8815

7059
2027
503

14126
4011

360

9755
4591

934

6412
689

4723

3602 9368 8850
424 2331 2718

3j78 7037 6132

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net income 1.37 3.00 2.92 2.91 2.73

Cash dividend 1.12 1.06 .74 .92 1.34

Book value 30.54 33.43 38.78 28.02 25.51

Year-End Balance Sheet Figures

000 omitted 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Total assets 556529 561636 542167 352223 316890
Net loans 414297 394625 386809 227179 227567
Total investment securities 81239 86760 90754 85334 65729
Deposits noninterest

bearing 44205 46860 47548 29162 23944
Deposits interest bearing 377106 393070 362287 232016 206346
Total deposits 421311 439930 409835 261178 230290
Total stockholders equity 70757 78414 81553 48389 44071

Ratios

Average equity/average
assets 14.05 14.79 14.80 13.85 13.76

Return on average equity 4.07 8.35 9.06 10.90 11.24
Return on average assets .57 1.24 1.34 1.51 1.55

26



Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

The following is managements discussion and analysis of the significant

changes in the consolidated results of operations capital resources and

liquidity presented in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial

statements for the Corporation This discussion should be read in

conjunction with the preceding consolidated financial statements and related

footnotes as well as the Corporations December 31 2008 Annual Report
Current performance does not guarantee and may not be indicative of similar

performance in the future

In addition to historical information this annual report contains forward-

looking statements The forward-looking statements contained in this report

are subject to certain risks assumptions and uncertainties Because of the

possibility of change in the underlying assumptions actual results could

differ materially from those projected in the forwardlooking statements
Additional factors that might cause actual results to differ materially from

those expressed in the forward-looking statements include but are not

limited to

operating legal and regulatory risks

economic political and competitive forces affecting the

Corporations services and

the risk that managements analyses of these risks could be

incorrect and/or that the strategies developed to address them could

be unsuccessful

The Corporations forwardlooking statements are relevant only as of the

date on which the statements are made By making forwardlooking statements
the Corporation assumes no duty to update them to reflect new changing or

unanticipated events or circumstances Readers should carefully review the

risk factors described in other periodic reports and public documents that

the Corporation files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange
Commission

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Disclosure of the Corporations significant accounting policies is included

in Note to the consolidated financial statements of the Corporations
Annual Report for the year ended December 31 2008 Some of these policies

are particularly sensitive requiring significant judgments estimates and

assumptions to be made by management

The Bank policy related to the allowance for loan losses is considered to be

critical accounting policy because the allowance for loan losses

represents particularly sensitive accounting estimate The amount of the

allowance is based on managements evaluation of the collectibility of the

loan portfolio including the nature of the loan portfolio credit

concentrations trends in historical loss experience specific impaired

loans and economic conditions
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The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan
losses charged to expense Loans are charged against the allowance for loan
losses when management believes that the collectibllity of the principal is

unlikely The allowance is an amount that management believes will be

adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans that may become

uncollectible based on evaluations of the collectibllity of loans and prior
loan loss experience The evaluations take into consideration such factors
as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio
quality review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions
that may affect the borrowers ability to pay

FUTURE IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB reached
consensus on Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue 064 Accounting for

Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement

Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements EITF Issue 064 In March

2007 the FASB reached consensus on EITF Issue 0610 Accounting for

Collateral Assignment SplitDollar Life Insurance Arrangements EITF
Issue 0610 Both of these standards require company to recognize an

obligation over an employees service period based upon the substantive

agreement with the employee such as the promise to maintain life insurance

policy or provide death benefit postretirement The Corporation adopted
the provisions of these standards effective January 2008 On that date
the Corporation recorded 1001000 liability and corresponding
decrease in retained earnings For periods after January 2008 the

Corporation will record an appropriate liability and corresponding effects
on current income for the applicable periods net expense of 107934
was recorded for the year ended December 31 2008 as result of this

pronouncement

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 SFAS 157 defines
fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally
accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements
but rather provides enhanced guidance to other pronouncements that require
or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value This
Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15 2007 and interim periods within those years
The FASB has approved one-year deferral for the implementation of the

Statement for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are

recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on

nonrecurring basis The Corporation adopted SPAS 157 effective January
2008 The adoption of SPAS 157 was not material to the consolidated
financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities SFAS 159 This Statement permits entities to choose to

measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported
earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently
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without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions The fair value

option established by this Statement permits all entities to choose to

measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates business

entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair

value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date

The fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument and is

irrevocable SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entitys first

fiscal year that begins after November 15 2007 with early adoption

available in certain circumstances The Corporation adopted SFAS 159

effective January 2008 The Corporation decided not to report any

existing financial assets or liabilities at fair value that are not already

reported thus the adoption of this statement did not have material impact

on the consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R The Standard

will significantly change the financial accounting and reporting of business

combination transactions SFAS 141R establishes principles for how an

acquirer recognizes and measures the identifiable assets acquired
liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree

recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or

gain from bargain purchase and determines what information to disclose

to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and

financial effects of the business combination SFAS 14R is effective for

acquisition dates on or after the beginning of an entitys first year that

begins after December 15 2008 Implementation of SFAS 141R has impacted

the 2008 financial statements in that expenses related to the expected

merger with Graystone Financial Corp have been expensed rather than

capitalized It will have further impact in 2009 when the merger is

completed

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an Amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 The Standard will

significantly change the financial accounting and reporting of

noncontrolling or minority interests in consolidated financial statements

SFAS 160 is effective as of the beginning of an entitys first fiscal year
that begins after December 15 2008 with early adoption prohibited The

Corporation does not expect the implementation of SEAS 160 to have

material impact on its consolidated financial statements

In November 2007 the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC issued Staff

Accounting Bulletin No 109 Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair

Value Through Earnings SAB 109 SAB 109 expresses the current view of the

staff that the expected net future cash flows related to the associated

servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all written

loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings SEC

registrants are expected to apply the views in Question of SAB 109 on

prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or modified in

fiscal quarters beginning after December 15 2007 Implementation of SAB

109 did not have material impact on the consolidated financial statements
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In December 2007 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No 110 Use of

Simplified Method in Developing Expected Term of Share Options SAB 110
SAB 110 expresses the current view of the staff that it will accept
companys election to use the simplified method discussed in SAB 107 for

estimating the expected term of plain vanilla share options regardless of

whether the company has sufficient information to make more refined
estimates The staff noted that it understands that detailed information
about employee exercise patterns may not be widely available by December 31
2007 Accordingly the staff will continue to accept under certain

circumstances the use of the simplified method beyond December 31 2007
Implementation of SAB 110 did not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SPAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of SEAS No 133 SFAS
No 161 SPAS No 161 requires that an entity provide enhanced disclosures
related to derivative and hedging activities SEAS No 161 is effective for

fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 with

early application permitted Implementation of SEAS No 161 is not expected
to have material impact on the Corporations consolidated financial

statements

In April 2008 the FASB issued EASB Staff Position FSP No 1423
Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets FSP No 1423
FSP No 142-3 amends the factors an entity should consider in developing
renewal or extension assumptions used in determining the useful life of

recognized intangible assets under FASB SEAS No 142 Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets SEAS No 142 The intent of ESP No 1423 is to

improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized intangible
asset under SEAS No 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to

measure the fair value of the assets under SEAS No 141R ESP No 142-3 is

effective for the Corporation on January 2009 and applies prospectively
to intangible assets that are acquired individually or with group of other
assets in business combinations and asset acquisitions The adoption of FSP
No 1423 is not expected to have material impact on the Corporations
consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SEAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles SEAS No 162 SFAS No 162 identifies
the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the
principles to be used in the preparation of financial statements of

nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles SEAS No 162 is effective 60 days following
the SECs approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
amendments to AU Section 411 The Meaning of Present Eairly in Conformity
With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Management does not expect
the adoption of the provision of SEAS No 162 to have any impact on the

consolidated financial statements

In September 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 Disclosures
about Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees An Amendment of FASB
Statement No 133 and FASB Interpretation No 45 and Clarification of the

Effective Date of EASB Statement No 161 ESP 1331 and PIN 45-4 FSP
1331 and FIN 45-4 require seller of credit derivatives to disclose
information about its credit derivatives and hybrid instruments that have
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embedded credit derivatives to enabie users of financial statements to

assess their potentiai effect on its financial position financial

performance and cash flows The disclosures required by FSP 133-1 and FIN

45-4 were effective for the Corporation on December 31 2008 and did not

have materiai impact on the consolidated financial statements

In October 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3 Determining the Fair Value

of Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active FSP
157-3 FSP 1573 clarifies the application of SFAS No 157 in determining

the fair value of financial asset during periods of inactive markets FSP

1573 was effective as of September 30 2008 and did not have material

impact on the Corporations consolidated financial statements

In December 2008 the FASB issued FSP No FAS 1404 and FIN 46R8
Disclosures by Public Entities Enterprises about Transfers of Financial

Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities FSP No FAS 1404 and

FIN 46R-8 requires enhanced disclosures about transfers of financial

assets and interests in variable interest entities The FSP is effective for

interim and annual periods ending after December 15 2008 Since the FSP

requires only additional disclosures concerning transfers of financial

assets and interest in variable interest entities adoption of the FSP will

not affect the Corporations financial condition results of operations or

cash flows

In January 2009 the FASB reached consensus on EITF Issue 99-20-1 This

FSP amends the impairment guidance in EITF Issue No 99-20 Recognition of

Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased Beneficial Interests and

Beneficial Interests That Continue to Be Held by Transferor in Securitized

Financial Assets to achieve more consistent determination of whether an

other-than-temporary impairment has occurred The FSP also retains and

emphasizes the objective of otherthantemporary impairment assessment and

the related disclosure requirements in FASB Statement No 115 Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and other related

guidance The FSP is effective for interim and annual reporting periods

ending after December 15 2008 and shall be applied prospectively The FSP

was effective as of December 31 2008 and did not have material impact on

the consolidated financial statements

OVERVIEW

On November 12 2008 Tower Bancorp Inc and Graystone Financial Corp entered

into an Agreement and Plan of Merger the Merger Agreement pursuant to which

Graystone Financial Corp will merge with and into Tower Bancorp Inc In the

merger Graystone shareholders will receive 0.42 shares of Tower common stock for

each share of Graystone common stock they hold on the effective date of the merger
Following the transaction current Tower shareholders will own approximately 45%

and Graystone shareholders will own approximately 55% of the combined companys

common stock The shareholders of both entities have approved the combination

Pending final regulatory approvals the merger is expected to be completed on or

about April 2009

The merger with FNB Financial Corporation which occurred on June 2006

represents significant expansion of the Tower Bancorp Inc franchise In

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP comparisons
of yearto-date results have not been restated for the impact of the FNB
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Financial Corporation operations for the first five months of 2006 or for

the twelve months of 2007 rendering these comparative analyses less useful
than the quarterly comparison Also on February 28 2007 the Corporation
dissolved FNB Mortgage Brokers Inc subsidiary of the bank acquired in

the merger

Net income for the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was 3178000 and
7037000 respectively The decrease of 3859000 or 54.8% is

primarily attributable to an other than temporary impairment charge of

2607000 decrease of 1617000 of investment security gains and

775000 increase in the allowance for loan loss provision expense Net
interest income increased 6.9% other income decreased 32.7% the provision
for loan loss increased 129.2% and other expenses increased 25.6% On

basic and diluted per share basis net income for the year ended December 31
2008 was 1.37 and 1.37 respectively as compared with 3.00 and 2.99
for the year ended December 31 2007 Net income as percentage of average
assets on an annualized basis also known as return on average assets
decreased to 0.57% for 2008 from 1.24% for 2007 as result of lower net

income Net income as percentage of total average stockholders equity on

an annualized basis also known as return on average equity was 4.07% and
8.35% for 2008 and 2007 respectively Net income as percentage of total

average tangible stockholders equity on an annualized basis also known as

return on average tangible equity was 5.33% and 10.70% for 2008 and 2007
respectively The decrease in this ratio is attributable to net income

declining faster than tangible equity

During 2008 the Corporations assets decreased 5107000 or 0.9% to

556529000 as of December 31 2008 from 561636000 as of December 31
2007 This decrease is primarily attributable to decrease in Federal
funds sold as result of decrease in deposits Total loans net of

deferred fees increased 5.1% to 418894000 Total deposits decreased

by 18619000 or 4.2% during 2008 to 421311000 as of December 31
2008 from 439930000 as of December 31 2007 As result of competition
in the market and to certain degree customers continued uncertainty as

to how to best invest their monies changes in deposit balances may not be

assumed at the current rates

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Interest Income

For the year ended December 31 2008 total interest income decreased by
2389000 or 7.2% to 30974000 compared with 33363000 for the

year ended December 31 2007 The increase is primarily due to lower
interest rate environment Adversely impacting interest rate income was
400 basis point drop in the Prime Rate and 227 basis point drop in the One
Year Constant Maturity Treasury Rate during 2008 Also average interest-

earning assets decreased to 497603000 for 2008 from 514899000 for

2007 decrease of 17296000 or 3.4% The decrease in average interest

earning assets was attributable to decreased Federal Funds Sold which was

result of lower deposit balances Management targeted efforts to attract
home equity mortgage and small commercial loans Management believes that
our experience in making mortgage and small commercial loans positions the

Corporation well to meet the financing demands of individuals and small
businesses
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Total interest expense decreased by 3720000 or 26.6% to 10290000
for the year ended December 31 2008 from 14010000 for the year ended

December 31 2007 The decrease is partially due to decline in deposit

balances verage interest bearing liabilities decreased 1.1% to

432883000 for 2008 from 437520000 for 2007 Primarily contributing

to the decreased interest expense is lower rates paid on deposits

particularly time deposit accounts which decreased 71 basis points to 3.61%

and money market accounts which decreased 168 basis points to 3.54% The

interest expense for time deposit accounts decreased 1614000 to

5985000 for 2008 from 7599000 and money market accounts decreased

2017000 to 1893000 for 2008 from 3910000 for 2007

Net interest income increased by 1331000 or 6.9% to 20684000 for

the year ended December 31 2008 from 19353000 for the year ended

December 31 2007 This increase is attributable to change in the mix of

earning assets with increases in higher yielding loans and security

investments and decreases in the lower yielding Federal Funds sold

The net interest rate spread was 3.8% for the year ending December 31 2008

and the net interest margin was 4.2% The net interest spread and the net

interest margin increased from 3.3% and 3.8% respectively in 2007 Due to

large investment portfolio at the holding company level these ratios are

lower than the Banks separate performance of 4.0% net interest spread and

4.3% net interest margin for the year ended December 31 2008
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DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
INTEREST RATES AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

The table below sets tooth an analysis of net interest income

Assets

tnvestnient Seenrities

Taxable interest income

Nontasahle interest incense

Total investment securities

Leans includnig nan-accrual leans

net xl unearned discounts

Interest-hearing slepasits ss tb banks

Federal mists sold

Total ittlerest eartittig assets

Restricted book stock

Altewance or lean tosses

ash and disc nun banks

Batik prcttti.ses and equipteent

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stnekhotders Equity

Ititerest hearing slristatul rirposits

Saveigsdepasits

Tntte deposits

t3rsrrsissesl tutists

Total interest bearing liabilities

Oenrand deposits

titter luihitities

Tetat tiahittites

Stockholders equity

rrtal liabtlnies slackttolders

611.520 2467

271411 1196

876611 3663

399.579

698

9666
_____________

4976113
_______________

4381

4216

111.682

12.796

33.967

555.213

179237

423113

163757

47.886 ______________

432.883
_____________

48637

3669

477189

78.1124

555213

4.1% 56.521 1618

44y 28843 1278

4.2% 848644 2896

6.85 391698 28.498

43% 61 16

2.7% 38.579 1.961

514899 33363

2.972

3818

11413

11496

32683

569645

2% 1826112 4136

114% 44108 191

37% 173644 7599

43% 37236 2882

14% 437820 14018

41528

63311

465378

84.267

569645

94 h2562 1.8181

46% 26107 1227

3.4% 88669 3127

7.3% 318.819

26 2% 506

51% 7109 ___________

15% 415103 ___________

3.023

2955

11.196

8.821

221164

457252

120.849 1.893

42266 175

136.159 5318

44.608 2495

343682 9.873

38.6011

7174

389556

67696

457.252

Net ntterest iticotnie spread

Net interest ittargm

20684 18% 19353

3.8%

15.926 57

Aserage Average

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

2808 2007

000 amitted 000 nmilted

Ave rage

Balance Interest Rate

2006

000 audIted

27023

311

288

30974

2111

54

5385

2840

10290

22384

40

348

25799

2.9%

4.7%

3.4%

11%

97s

4.9%

62%

1.ris

3.9%

5.64

equity

2.3%

11.4%

4.4%

5.6%

3.2%
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME

The table below illustrates the effects on net interest income of changes in

average volumes of interest-bearing liabilities and earning assets as well as

changes in average rates

2008 Versus 2007

Increase Decrease
Due to Change in

Total

Average Average Increase

Volume Rate Decrease
000 omitted

Interest Income

Loans including nonaccrual loans
net of unearned discounts 563 2030 1467

Taxable investment securities 95 754 849

Nontaxable investment securities 60 22 82
Other shortterm investments 473 216 1689

Total interest income 875 1514 2389

Interest Expense

Interest bearing demand 76 1951 2027
Savings deposits 30 37
Time deposits 426 1188 1614
Borrowed funds 521 563 _____ 42

Total interest expense 11 3731 3720

Net interest income $1331

2007 Versus 2006

Increase Decrease
Due to Change in

Total

Average Average Increase

Volume Rate Decrease
000 omitted

Interest Income

Loans including nonaccrual loans
net of unearned discounts 5021 1085 6106

Taxable investment securities 147 35 182

Nontaxable investment securities 133 82 51

Other shortterm investments 1737 148 1589
Total interest income 6744 820 7564

Interest Expense

Interest hearing demand 970 1275 2245
Savings deposits 16

Time deposits 1436 853 2289
Borrowed funds 380 33 413

Total interest expense 2033 2104 4137

Net interest income

Changes which are attributed in part to volume and in part to rate are

allocated in proportion to their relationships to the amounts of changes
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Provision for Loan Losses

For the year ended December 31 2008 the provision for loan losses was
1375000 an increase of 775000 or 129.2% compared with 600000

for the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in the provision is

attributable to slower housing market declining prices of real estate
increased charge-offs and increased delinquencies The level of the

provision is commensurate with the risk identified in the loan portfolio

The allowance for loans losses represented 1.10% of total loans at

December 31 2008 compared with 0.97% as of December 31 2007 Management
performs ongoing assessments of the loan loss reserve in relation to loan

portfolio growth credit exposure to individual borrowers overall trends in

the loan portfolio including delinquencies and other relevant factors
Based upon these factors management believes that as of December 31 2008
the reserve is reasonable and sufficient to support the current level of

loans in light of the asset quality as supported by the capital ratios
reflected on page 48

Other Income

Other income for the year ended December 31 2008 decreased 2194000 or

32.7% to 4517000 from 6711000 for 2007 Net gains from the sale of

securities decreased from 1886000 to 269000 decrease of

1617000 or 41.2% Also negatively impacting other income were decreases
of 353000 for the income recognized on mortgage servicing rights

239000 from investment service fees and 84000 from bank owned life
insurance BOLl During 2007 the bank began recognizing the value of the

mortgage servicing rights and the credit enhancement on $26555000 of loans
sold to the FHLB of Pittsburgh over the prior two years contributing

301000 to other income after amortization of 19000 Amortization in

2008 was 52000 In 2007 death benefits of 132000 positively impacted
BOLl In 2008 the investment sales representative resigned from the bank

causing the decrease in investments service fees Other income was

positively impacted by an increase of 78000 in NSF fees The Bank re
established and reactivated its Trust Department in the third quarter of

2006 The Bank also initiated cash rewards program for debit cards

Other Expenses

Other expenses which include salary and benefits occupancy and all other

expenses incidental to the operations of the Corporation increased to

20224000 for the twelve months ended December 31 2008 from 16096000
for the twelve months ended December 31 2007 The 4128000 or 25.6%
increase was primarily due to 2607000 otherthantemporary impairment
expense representing the decline in fair value of securities held in the

holding companys investment portfolio and 300000 of merger expenses
related to the expected merger with Graystone Financial Corporation

Salaries and employee benefit expenses which make up the largest component
of other expenses increased 393000 or 4.8% to 8581000 for the year
ended December 31 2008 from 8188000 for the year ended December 31
2007 The increase is primarily attributed to increases in health insurance
of 335000 and regular salary increases
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Occupancy and equipment expenses for the year ended December 31 2008

increased to 4085000 from 3629000 for the year ended December 31
2007 an increase of 456000 or 12.6% The increase is primarily due to

increased computer expense of 211000 depreciation expense of $128000

and equipment expense of 58000

Included in other expenses for 2008 are 300000 in merger expense and

2607000 in impairment expense The merger expense represents costs

related to the planned merger with Graystone Financial Corp which is

expected to be consummated in the second quarter of 2009 The impairment

expense represents the decline in the fair value of the holding companys
investment portfolio that management has determined is otherthan-

temporarily impaired These investments were concentrated in the financial

services sector which has been hit especially hard in the market downturn

Other operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2008 increased to

4651000 from 4279000 for the year ended December 31 2007 an

increase of 372000 or 8.7% The increase is primarily due to increases

in legal and professional services expense of 278000 due to consultants

contracted to assist with the resolution of the OCCs Memorandum of

Understanding FDIC insurance premiums also increased 251000

On February 27 2009 the FDIC announced that it was increasing federal

deposit insurance premiums beginning the second quarter of 2009 for well

managed well capitalized banks to range between 12 and 16 cents per 100

of insured deposits on an annual basis Currently we have approximately

418523000 in FDIC-insured deposits

The FDIC also voted to impose special assessment of 20 basis points on all

FDICinsured banks to be collected on September 30 2009 We currently

anticipate that this special assessment will adversely affect earnings by

837000 based on our current federallyinsured deposit amounts

Furthermore the FDIC has the authority after June 30 2009 to impose an

additional 10 basis point emergency special assessment on all FDIC-insured

banks if it estimates the reserve ratio of the Deposit Insurance Fund will

fall to level that it believes would adversely affect public confidence or

to level which would be close to zero or negative at the end of calendar

quarter At this time we cannot estimate the probability of this event

however any additional FDIC assessment and/or premium would be adverse to

our 2009 earnings

Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31 2008 the tax provision was 424000

compared with 2331000 for the year ended December 31 2007 decrease

of 1907000 or 81.8% The effective tax rate was 11.8% for 2008 and

24.9% for 2007 Contributing to the lower tax rate was decrease in pre
tax income and changes in deferred taxes attributable to the impairment

expense
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Net Income

Net income for the year ended December 31 2008 was 3178000 decrease
of 3859000 or 54.8% compared with 7037000 for the year ended
December 31 2007 The decrease is the result of changes in the components
of net income noted above Minimizing the decreased level of net income was

the higher net interest spread which increased from 3.3% in 2007 to 3.8% in

2008 Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31
2008 were 1.37 and 1.37 compared with 3.00 and 2.99 for the year
ended December 31 2007

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Securities

The Corporations securities portfolio is comprised of securities that not

only provide interest and dividend income including tax-exempt income but
also provide source of liquidity diversify the earning assets portfolio
allow for the management of risk and tax liability and provide collateral
for repurchase agreements and public fund deposits Policies are in place to

address various aspects of managing the portfolio including but not limited
to concentrations liquidity credit quality interest rate sensitivity and
regulatory guidelines

Although the Corporation generally intends to hold its investment securities
to maturity all of the securities portfolio is classified as available for

sale with new purchases generally categorized as such Securities in the

available for sale category are accounted for at fair value with unrealized
appreciation or depreciation net of tax reported as separate component
of stockholders equity Securities in the held to maturity category of

which the Corporation has none are accounted for at amortized cost The

Corporation holds no trading securities in its portfolio The securities
portfolio includes equities owned by the holding company most of which are

investments in banks bank holding companies and financial institutions
Equity investments are accounted for at fair value The remaining
securities primarily debt instruments are owned by the bank

The consolidated securities portfolio at December 31 2008 was 76451000
compared to 83846000 at December 31 2007 decrease of 7395000 or

8.8% The decrease is due primarily to decreases in the fair values of

securities held as result of poor market conditions

38



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

MATURITIES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

December 31 2008

The following table shows the maturities of investment securities at

amortized cost as of December 31 2008 and weighted average yields of such

securities Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities

because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or

without call or prepayment penalties Yields are shown on taxable

equivalent basis assuming 34% federal income tax rate

After After

year but years but

Within within within 10 After 10

year years years years Total

000 omitted

Bonds

U.S Government

backed securities

Book value 20 3239 11 $10678 $13948

Yield 5.37% 4.09% 4.21% 5.17% 4.92%

State and municipal

Book value $2381 $5945 $19814 $10898 $38738

Yield 4.42% 5.93% 5.97% 7.06% 6.17%

Other

Book value 1905 912 1455 4272

Yield 0.00% 5.54% 5.63% 4.15% 5.10%

Total book value $240L $11089 $20437 $23031 $56958

Yield 4.43% 5.33% 5.95% 6.00% 5.79%

Equity Securities

Total Equity Securities $23092

Yield 2.54%

Total Investment Securities $80050

Yield 4.78%
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Bank Owned Securities

The bank owned securities portfolio at December 31 2008 was 57969000
compared to 49985000 at December 31 2007 an increase of 7984000
or 16.0% The increase is attributable to the purchase of taxable state and

municipal bonds and corporate bonds

The carrying value of the available for sale portion of the portfolio at

December 31 2008 includes an unrealized gain of 1011000 reflected as

accumulated other comprehensive income of 667000 in stockholders equity
net of deferred income tax liability of 344000 This compares with an

unrealized gain at December 31 2007 of $829000 reflected as accumulated
other comprehensive Income of $547000 In stockholders equity net of

deferred income tax liability of $282000

Holding Company Owned Securities

The holding company securities portfolio at December 31 2008 was
18483000 compared to 33861000 at December 31 2007 decrease of

15378000 or 45.4% The decrease includes 13293000 in unrealized

losses Realized gains on sale of equity securities were 257000 for the

year ending December 31 2008 The holding companys securities portfolio
is invested in banks bank holding companies and financial institutions
The stock value of this market segment is down significantly for the year
2008

The carrying value of the available for sale portion of the portfolio at

December 31 2008 includes an unrealized loss of 4609000 reflected as

accumulated other comprehensive income of 3042000 in stockholders
equity net of deferred income tax liability of 1567000 This

compares with an unrealized gain at December 31 2007 of 6077000
reflected as accumulated other comprehensive income of 4011000 in

stockholders equity net of deferred income tax liability of

2066000 During 2008 net income after tax decreased 1721000 to

reflect the decline in fair value of the portfolio that management has

determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired

Loans

The loan portfolio comprises the major component of the Corporations
earning assets and generally is the highest yielding asset category Gross
loans receivable net of unearned fees and origination costs increased

19945000 or 5.0% to 419103000 at December 31 2008 from

399158000 at December 31 2007 Gross loans represented 99.5% of total

deposits at December 31 2008 as compared with 90.7% at December 31 2007
primarily due to the 19945000 growth in loans and the decline in total

deposits of 18619000 primarily in savings and time deposits At

December 31 2008 the bank had sold mortgage loans to the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Pittsburgh with balance of 30137000 compared to 27784000
at December 31 2007
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Credit Risk and Loan Quality

The Corporation continues to be prudent in its efforts to minimize credit

risk The Banks written lending policy requires underwriting loan

documentation and credit analysis standards to be met prior to the approval
and funding of any loan In accordance with that policy the loan review

process monitors the loan portfolio on an ongoing basis The Credit

Administration area and the accounting department then prepare an analysis
of the allowance for loan losses which is then submitted to the Board of

Directors for its assessment as to the adequacy of the allowance The

allowance for loan losses is an accumulation of expenses that has been

charged against past and present earnings in anticipation of potential
losses in the loan portfolio

The allowance for loan losses at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 was

4597000 and 3854000 respectively The increase in the allowance is

attributable to slower housing market declining prices of real estate
and increased delinquencies as well as the increase in gross loan volumes

At December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses represented 1.10% of

the gross loan portfolio compared with 0.97% at December 31 2007 At

December 31 2008 in consideration of the asset quality management
believes the allowance for loan loss reserve to be reasonable and adequate
to support the loan growth and to address potential losses inherent in the

portfolio

The Banks lending policy is executed through the assignment of tiered loan

limit authorities to individual officers of the Bank the Officers Loan

Committee and the Board of Directors Although the Bank maintains sound

credit policies certain loans may deteriorate for variety of reasons The

Banks policy is to place all loans on non-accrual status upon becoming 90

days delinquent in their payments unless there is documented and

reasonable expectation of the collection of the delinquent amount Loans are

reviewed monthly as to their status and on quarterly basis presented to

the Board of Directors Management is not aware of any material potential
loan problems that have not been disclosed In this report

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events
it is probable that the Corporation will not be able to collect the

scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement The larger commercial loans are

evaluated for impairment Impairment is measured on loan-by-loan basis by

comparing the contractual principal and interest payments to the present
value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the

collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Consumer loans such as

residential mortgages and installments comprised of smaller balance

homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Interest

income is generally not recognized on specific impaired loans unless the

likelihood of further loss is remote Interest income on such loans is

recognized only to the extent of interest payments received Impaired loans

amounted to 3653000 and 7059000 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Allowance for loan losses allocated to impaired loans were

86000 and 940000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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At December 31 2008 the Corporation had other real estate owned not used
in operations in the amount of 2316000 which was slight increase
from the 2313000 owned at December 31 2007 Of the other real estate

owned 1985000 represented lots purchased for possible future bank
facilities The remaining $331000 represents foreclosed property
specifically three to family residential properties At December 31
2008 and December 31 2007 the Corporation had non-accrual loans in the

amount of 4416000 and 4397000 respectively

Loan concentrations are considered to exist when the total amount of loans
to any one or multiple number of borrowers engaged in similar activities
or having similar characteristics exceeds 10% of loans outstanding in any
one category The Corporation maintains diversified loan portfolio
granting agribusiness commercial and residential loans to customers The

majority of the Banks lending is made within its primary market area which
includes southern Fulton County and southern Franklin County Pennsylvania
and northern Washington County Maryland At December 31 2008 63% of the

Corporations loan portfolio is concentrated in mortgages secured by 1-4

family properties and 6% is concentrated in loans secured by nonfarm
nonresidential properties

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Corporation has Bank Owned Life Insurance BOLl for certain officers
and directors whereby the Bank is the owner and beneficiary of the

policies The Banks deposits and proceeds from the sale of investment
securities funded the BOLl Earnings from the BOLl are recognized as other
income The BOLl generates income from the appreciation of the cash
surrender values of the pool of insurance and its tax advantage to the

Corporation This income is used to fund portion of current and future

employee benefit costs and Nonqualified Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan for the Corporations Chief Executive Officer

The Corporation had 11208000 and $10768000 in BOLl as of December 31
2008 and 2007 respectively an increase of 440000 or 4.1% Although the

BOLl is an asset that may be liquidated it is the Corporations intention
to hold this pool of insurance because it provides taxexempt income that
lowers the Corporations tax liability while enhancing its overall capital
position The Corporation also expects to collect future proceeds as the

beneficiary of the policies

Deposits

Deposits are the major source of the Corporations funds for lending and
investment purposes Total deposits at December 31 2008 were 421311000

decrease of 18619000 or 4.2% from total deposits of 439930000 at

December 31 2007 The decrease in deposits was primarily due to less

aggressive pricing of time deposits and 6300000 decline in large
money market account that opened in January 2007 Money market deposits
decreased 9508000 or 8.8% to 98992000 as of December 31 2008
Weekly management reviews options to manage the funding of the bank and

respond to changes in interest rates and local competition The cost of

deposits has decreased due to the lower interest rate environment Lower
rates impacted the cost of interest bearing deposits which decreased to

2.14% as of December 31 2008 from 2.95% as of December 31 2007
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Short-Term Borrowings

Short term borrowings at December 31 2008 were 27815000 compared to

10996000 at December 31 2007 an increase of 16819000 or 153%

The increase was primarily due to an increase in overnight borrowings from

the Federal Home Loan Bank to replace decrease in deposits Federal funds

purchased Treasury Tax and Loan demand note lines of credits with banks

and overnight borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh are

considered to be short term borrowings Short term borrowings fluctuate

daily to meet the liquidity needs of the Corporation The Corporation had

short term sources of available borrowings in the amount of 66127000
overnight lines from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh and

9900000 from area banks As of December 31 2008 the maximum borrowing

capacity with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh is approximately

229514000 which includes the 66127000 overnight lines

LongTerm Debt and Borrowing Capacity

There were 31854000 outstanding in fixed rate and convertible term loans

with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh at December 31 2008 compared

to 26863000 borrowed at December 31 2007

The Bank has total maximum borrowing capacity for both short and long-term

borrowings of approximately 229514000 with the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Pittsburgh out of which 31854000 represents fixed rate and convertible

term loans and 18873000 represented overnight borrowings that were

outstanding at December 31 2008 and resulted in an unused borrowing

capacity of 178787000

Asset/Liability Management

The management of interest rate risk involves measuring and analyzing the

maturity and repricing of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities at specific points in time The imbalance between interest-

earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities is commonly referred to as

the interest rate gap The interest rate gap is one measure of the risk

inherent in the existing balance sheet as it relates to potential changes in

net interest income Maintaining an appropriate balance between interest-

earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities is means of monitoring and

possibly avoiding material fluctuations in the net interest margin during

periods of changing interest rates

The Corporations overall sensitivity to interest rate risk is low due to

its non-complex balance sheet The Corporation manages its balance sheet

with the intent of stabilizing net interest income and net economic value

under broad range of interest rate environments The Corporation has the

ability to effect various strategies to manage interest rate risk which

include but are not limited to selling newly originated residential

mortgage loans controlling the volume mix of fixed/variable rate commercial

loans mortgage loans and securities increasing/ decreasing deposits via

interest rate changes borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Pittsburgh and buying/selling securities Adjustments to the mix of assets

and liabilities are made periodically in an effort to give the Corporation

dependable and steady growth in net interest income while at the same time

managing the related risks
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Liquidity

Liquidity represents the Corporations ability to efficiently manage cash

flows at reasonable rates to support possible commitments to borrowers or

the demands of depositors Liquidity is essential to compensate for

fluctuations in the balance sheet and provide funds for growth and normal

operating expenditures Liquidity needs may be met by converting assets into

cash or obtaining sources of additional funding

Liquidity from asset categories is provided through cash amounts due from

banks interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold which

were 11559000 at December 31 2008 compared to 36851000 at

December 31 2007 This decrease is primarily due to decrease in federal

funds sold in response to decline in deposits Additional asset liquidity

sources include principal and interest payments from securities in the

Corporations investment portfolio and cash flow from its amortizing loan

portfolio Longer-term liquidity needs may be met by selling securities

available for sale selling loans or raising additional capital At December

31 2008 there were 58578000 in liquid securities as compared to

68573000 at December 31 2007 Liquid securities decreased by

9995000 since December 31 2007 due primarily to the decrease in

unrealized gains in the investment portfolio

Liability liquidity sources include attracting deposits at competitive
rates Deposits at December 31 2008 were 421311000 compared to

439930000 at December 31 2007 In addition the Corporation has

borrowing capacity and lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of

Pittsburgh Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and several local banks

The Corporations financial statements do not reflect various off-balance

sheet commitments that are made in the normal course of business which may
involve some liquidity risk Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussed in

detail below

Management is of the opinion that its liquidity position at December 31
2008 is adequate to respond to fluctuations on and off the balance

sheet In addition management knows of no trends demands commitments
events or uncertainties that may result in or that are reasonably likely to

result in the Corporations inability to meet anticipated or unexpected

liquidity needs

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Corporations financial statements do not reflect various off-balance

sheet arrangements that are made in the normal course of business These

commitments consist mainly of loans approved but not yet funded unused

lines of credit and letters of credit made in accordance with the same

standards as on-balance sheet instruments Unused commitments at

December 31 2008 were 26662000 which consisted of 23519000 in

unfunded commitments to existing loans and unfunded new loans and

3143000 in letters of credit Unused commitments at December 31 2007

were 49158000 which consisted of 45949000 in unfunded commitments

to existing loans and unfunded new loans and 3209000 in letters of

credit Because these instruments have fixed maturity dates and because
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many of them will expire without being drawn upon they do not generally

present significant liquidity risk to the Corporation Management believes
that any amounts actually drawn upon can be funded in the normal course of

operations The Corporation has no investment in or financial relationship
with any unconsolidated entities that are reasonably likely to have
material effect on liquidity or the availability of capital resources

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

number of measures are used to monitor and manage interest rate risk

including income simulation and interest sensitivity gap analysis An
income simulation model is used to assess the direction and magnitude of

changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates

Key assumptions in the model include prepayment repricing and maturity of

loan related assets deposit sensitivity market conditions and changes in

other financial instruments The Corporations policy objective is to limit

the change in annual earnings to 20% of net interest income At

December 31 2008 based on the results of the simulation model the

Corporation would expect decrease in net interest income of 1148000
or 5.6% over 12month period if interest rates increased from current
rates by 200 basis points If interest rates decreased from current rates

by 200 basis points the Corporation would expect an increase in net
interest income of 14000 or 0.1% over 12-month period

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the

extent to which such assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive
and by monitoring an institutions interest rate sensitivity gap An

asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within specific
time period if it will mature or reprice within that time period The

interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference between the

amount of interestearning assets maturing or repricing within specific
time period and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or

repricing within that same time period gap is considered positive when
the amount of interestearning assets maturing or repricing exceeds the

amount of interestbearing liabilities maturing or repricing within the same

period gap is considered negative when the amount of interestbearing
liabilities maturing or repricing exceeds the amount of interest-earning
assets maturing or repricing within the same period Accordingly in

rising interest rate environment an institution with positive gap would
be in better position to invest in higher yielding assets which would
result in the yield on its assets increasing at pace closer to the cost of

its interestbearing liabilities than would be the case if it had

negative gap During period of falling interest rates an institution
with positive gap would tend to have its assets repricing at faster rate
than one with negative gap which would tend to restrain the growth of its

net interest income
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The Corporation closely monitors its interest rate risk as such risk

relates to its operationai strategies The Corporations Board of

Directors has estabiished an Asset/Liabiiity Committee responsibie for

reviewing its asset/liability poiicies and interest rate risk position
which generally meets quarteriy and reports to the Board on interest rate

risk and trends on quarterly basis

The following table sets forth the amounts of interestearning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December 31 2008 which are

anticipated by the Corporation based upon certain assumptions described

below to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown

Adjustable-rate assets and liabilities are included in the table in the

period in which their interest rates can next be adjusted

Rate sensitive assets

Interest bearing deposits

with banks and investment

securities

Real estate commercial and

consumer loans

NOW accounts savings

deposits and money market

accounts

Certificate of deposits

Borrowings

Cumulative interest

sensitive

GAP/total assets from

financial statements

Cumulative interest

Sensitive GAP ratio

000 omitted

2424 55545 58771

129678 184973 418894
132102 240518 477665

8942
239 75 17

134714 82129

24.19% 14.75%

15121 $216021
51651 161085
50583 59525

$117355 436631

41034 41034

7.37% 7.37%

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation has

limit exposure to market risk

risk management policies to monitor and

and strives to take advantage of profit

opportunities available in interest rate movements

Management continuously monitors liquidity and interest rate

risk through its ALCO reporting and reprices products in order to

maintain desired net interest margins Management expects to continue to

direct its marketing efforts toward attracting more low cost retail

deposits while competitively pricing its time deposits in order to

maintain favorable interest spreads while minimizing structural interest

rate risk

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

Due 90 Due 91 360 Due After

Days Year Total

Rate sensitive liabilities

Days

802

104243
105 045

194420
36397

6480
73037
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The following table sets forth the projected maturities and

average rates for all rate sensitive assets and liabilities based on the

following assumptions All fixed and variable rate loans were based on

original maturity of the note since the Corporation has not experienced
significant rewriting of loans Investments are based on maturity date The

Corporation has historically experienced very little deposit runoff and has
in fact had net gains in deposits over the past fifteen years Based on

this experience it was estimated that maximum runoff of noninterest bearing
checking would be 33% and for all other deposits except time deposits which
would be 10% Time deposits are classified by original maturity date

Less

thanl 13
year years

More

35 than5
years years

Lines of credit outstanding

Long-term debt obligations

Operating lease obligations

Total

27543 27543

31854 10250 5000

161 308 304 874

61044 27704 10558 5304 17478

CAPITAL FUNDS

Stockholders equity was 70757000 at December 31 2008
compared to 78414000 at December 31 2007 The decrease was primarily
due to lower unrealized gains on the investment portfolio Regulatory
authorities have established capital guidelines in the form of the leverage
ratio and risk-based capital ratios The leverage ratio compares capital
to total balance sheet assets while the riskbased ratios compare capital
to riskweighted assets and offbalance-sheet activity In order to make

Or Thsosaods Principal/Notiorral Amount Maturing In

Pair

2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total Value

12 901 9608 8101 60645 122 981 116689

Rate sensitxve aeneta 2009 2010

fixed interes rate loans 18253 13393
Average interest tate 7.36 7.38

Varahle interest rate loans 38849 10799
Aneraqo interest rate 4.18 5.19

Fixed in Ferns rate serorinino 2455 2183
Aeeragesotereet rate 3.90 3.79

rederal tonds sold

Average Istors St Rate 0.000 0.001

Rate SenCOtive Liabilitiec

000ssteren bnarsra rheokrsg 7369 2210
Savings aad intoress bearing obeokang 6480 4320
Aoerage interest Ca sen 1.02 1.02

floe deposits 109202 16251

Average interest rates 2.92 3.07

Fined interest rote borrowings 5226
Variable in terest rate borrows 090 27 015

sorrowitgo aossage Sn Fe rest rats 1.49 6.11

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

as follows

in thousands

Contractual obligations Total

7.20 6.82 6.61 6.51 6.04

9047 9362 9779 218077 295 913

5.71 6.06 6.49 6.12 5.81

2508 2347 4329 44216 57968

5.10 5.18 5.04 5.19 5.07

0.000 6.000 0.000 0.000 00.000

2210 2210 736 29470 44205

4320 4326 2160 194420 216021

1.02 1.02 1.02 1.02 1.02

24924 3017 7591 161085

3.88 4.28 3.57 0.00 3.22

4977 4977 16529 31709

27815
5.27 4.01 0.00 4.09 3.14

44 205

216121

162279

.3 008

27 815

Contractual obligations of the Corporation as of December 31 2008 are

Payments due by period

1647

0$
16 604
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capital levels more sensitive to risk profiles of individual banks comparison

of Tower Bancorps capital ratios to regulatory minimums at December 31 2008 is

as follows

Leverage ratio

Risk-based capital ratio Tier

core capital
Combined Tier and Tier II

core capital plus
allowance for loan losses

Tower Bancorp

2008

9.74%

13.80%

15.02%

2007

10.03%

14.95%

16.74%

Regulatory
Minimum

Requirements
4%

4%

8%

Tower Bancorp Inc has traditionally been well above required levels

and expects equity capital to continue to exceed regulatory guidelines Certain

ratios are useful in measuring the ability of Corporation to generate capital

internally

The following chart indicates the changes in equity capital for the

past three years

Equity capital at December 31 000

omitted

Equity capital as percent of assets at

December 31

Return on average assets

Return on average equity
Cash dividend payout ratio

STOCK MARKET ANALYSIS AND DIVIDENDS

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

2008 2007 2006

70757 78414 81553

12.71% 13.96% 15.04%

0.57% 1.24% 1.34%

4.07% 8.35% 9.06%

81.66% 35.37% 26.13%

Market Price

38.25 41.50

37.10 39.45

28.50 38.50

19.00 32.00

Market Price

43.70 44.75

43.15 44.75

42.10 44.25

41.10 42.50

Cash

Dividend

.28

.28

.28

.28

.26

.26

.26

.28

The Corporations common stock is traded in the over-the-counter

market As of December 31 2008 the approximate number of shareholders of record

was 1238

2008

2007

Cash
Dividend
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended
December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

000 omitted

except per share

Net income

applicable to

common stock

Per share data
Net income baa

QuarterEnded-

Dec 31 Mar 31 June 30 Sept
30

.64 .69 .39 .35 .84 .72 .78 .66

Item 7a Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

See the information set forth on pages 41 and 42 of the managements

discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31 2008 regarding guantitative and

gualitative disclosures about market risk in Iten

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data some of which is required

under Guide statistical disclosures by bank holding companies are shown on pages

through 35 of the annual shareholders report for the year ended December 31 2008

attached to this Form 10K as Exhibit 13 end are incorporated herein by reference

Certain statistical information required in addition to those inciuded in the annual

sharehoiders report are submitted herewith as follows

Description of Statistical Information

Loan portfolio

Summary of loan loss experience

Nonaccruei delinquent and impaired loans

Ailocation of allowances for loan losses

Deposits and return on equity end assets

Consolidated summary of operations

2008

Quarter Ended

Mar 31 June 30 Sept
30

2007

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Provision for loan

losses

Net interest income

after provision for

loan losses

cther income

cther expenses

Operating income

before mmmc taxes

Applicable income

taxes

Net income loss

8172
3016
5156

400

4756
1507

331

1932

7852
625

5227

150

077

1360
4277

2160

7661
2407
5254

525

4729
659

4335

1053

Dec 31

8400
3435
4965

8487
3593
4894

7289
2242
5047

300

4747
990

7280

1543

8182
3445
4737

150

4587
2275
4200

2662

8294
3537
4757

150

4607
1647
3969

2285

150 150

448 562 150 736 693

1484 1598 903 807 1969

4744
1607
3849

2502

4815
1182
4078

1919

572 684 382

1713 1818 1537

Page

45

46
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48

49

50
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TOWER BP.NCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

LOAN PORTFOLIO

The following table presents the loan portfolio at the end of each of the

last five years

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

000 omitted

Commercial
financial

Agricultural 27840 30444 54313 41619 40257

Real estate

Construction 15714 20134 20871 2556 6793

Real estate

Mortgage 360487 330842 297338 173923 171415

Installment

other

personal
loans net
of unearned

income 14853 17059 17897 11210 11004

Total loans 418894 398479 390419 229308 229469
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY
SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE
Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
000 omitted

Average total loans

outstanding net
of unearned income 399579 391695 318819 228848 220789

Allowance for loan

losses beginning

of period 3854 3610 2129 1902 1864
Additions to

provision for

loan losses

charged to

operations 1375 600 360 270 360
Addition due to merger 1163
Loans charged of

during the year
Commercial 404 15 276
Real estate

mortgage 74 197

Installment 238 224 87 95 106

Total charge
offs 716 436 87 96 382

Recoveries of loans

previously charged

off
Commercial 35 22 35

Installment 49 76 42 31 25

Mortgage

Total recoveries 84 80 45 53 60

Net loans charged

off recovered 632 356 42 43 322

Allowance for loan

losses end of

period 4597 3854 3610 2129 1902

Ratio of net loans

charged off

recovered
to average loans

outstanding .16% .09% .01% .02% .15%

The provision is based on an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for
possible loan losses The evaluation includes but is not limited to review of net loan
losses for the year the present and prospective financial condition of the borrowers and
evaluation of current and projected economic conditions
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

NONACCRUAL DELINQUENT AND IMPAIRED LOANS

The following table sets forth the outstanding balances of those loans on

nonaccrual status and those on accrual status which are contractually past due as to

principal or interest payments for 30 days and 90 days or more at December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

000 omitted

Nonaccrual loans $4416 $4397 688 44

Accrual loans

Restructured

30 89 days

past due 6941 1470 2002 299 155

90 days or

more past due 259 1001 393 59 13

Total

accrual

loans 7200 $2471 2395 358 168

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Exhibit 13 for

details of income recognized and foregone revenue on nonaccrual loans for the past three

years and disclosures of any impaired loans

Management has identified one impaired relationship in the accrual loan

categories shown above with balance of 966478 at December 31 2008
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The following is an allocation by loan categories of the allowance for loan

losses at December 31 for the last five years In retrospect the specific allocation in

any particular category may prove excessive or inadequate and consequently may be

reallocated in the future to reflect the then current conditions Accordingly the entire
allowance is available to absorb losses in any category

December 31

2008 2007

Percentage Percentage
of Loans of Loans

in Each in Each

Category Category
Allowance to Total Allowance to Total

Amount Loans Amount Loans

000 omitted
Commercial

financial and

agricultural 379 6.65% 1300 7.63%

Real estate

Construction 1.53 5.04

Real estate

Mortgage 3844 88.27 1668 83.06

Installment 266 3.55 246 4.27

Unallocated 108 N/A 640 N/A

Total 4597 100.0% 3854 100.07

December 31

2006 2005 2004

Percentage Percentage Percentage
of Loans of Loans of Loans

in Each in Each in Each

Category Category Category
Allowance to Total Allowance to Total Allowance to Total

Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

000 omitted

Commercial
financial and

agricultural 2144 13.91% 474 18.2% 453 17.5%

Real estate

Construction 5.35 1.1 3.0

Real estate

Mortgage 703 6.16 664 75.8 664 74.7

Installment 220 4.58 4.9 4.8

Unallocated 543 N/A 991 N/A 785 N/A

Total 3610 100.0% 2129 100.0% 1902 100.0%
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TOWER BP.NCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

DEPOSITS

The average amounts of deposits are summarized below

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted

Demand deposits

Interest bearing

demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Total deposits

RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS

APPLYING DAILY AVERAGE BALANCES

The following table presents summary of significant earnings and capital

ratios

000 omitted
Average assets

Net income

Average equity

Cash dividends

Return on assets

Return on equity

Dividend payout ratio

Equity to asset ratio

40637 41528 38600

179237 182602 120849

42303 44038 42266
163757 173644 136159

425934 441812 337874

2008 2007 2006

555213 569645 457252
3178 7037 6132

78024 84267 67696
2595 2489 1602

.57% 1.24% 1.34%

4.07% 8.35% 9.06%

81.66% 35.37% 26.13%

14.05% 14.79% 14.80%
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TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

000 omitted
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan

Losses

Net interest income

after provision

for loan losses

Other income
Investment services

income

Service charges

Deposits

Other service charges
coliection and

exchange charges
commission fees

Other operating

income

Total other

income

Income before

operating expense

Operating expenses
Salaries and

employees

benefits

Occupancy and

equipment

expense
Other operating

expenses

Total operating

Expenses

Income before

income taxes

Income tax

Net income

applicable to

common stock

Per share data
Earnings per

common share

Cash dividend

common

Average number of

common shares

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

30974 33363 25799 16494 14126
10290 14010 9873 5152 4011

20684 19353 15926 11342 10115

1375 600 360 270 360

19309 18753 15566 11072 9755

713 961 413 254 79

1897 1808 1523 1112 992

1241 1525 1084 722 559

666 2417 4304 2714 2961

4517 6711 7324 4802 4591

23826 25464 22890 15874 14346

6949 4474 4078

3073 1886 1702

7558 4279 4018 2455 2154

8581 8188

4085 3629

20224 16096 14040 8815 7934

3602 9368 8850 7059 6412
424 2331 2718 2027 1389

3178 7037 6132 5032 4723

1.37 3.00 2.92 2.91 2.73

1.12 1.06 .74 .92 1.34

2316697 2345286 2103487 1727055 1727856

55



Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and

Financial Disclosures

Not applicable

Item 9a Controls and Procedures

The Corporations Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have

evaluated the effectiveness of the Corporations disclosure controls and procedures as

such term is defined in Rules 13al5e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act as of December 31 2008 Based on such evaluation such

officers have concluded that as of December 31 2008 the Corporations disclosure

controls and procedures are effective in alerting them on timely basis to material

information relating to the Corporation including its consolidated subsidiary required

to be included in the Corporations periodic filings under the Exchange Act except for

the material weakness and related remediation measures noted in Managements Report on

Internal Control included in the Annual Report attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 13

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting and the

report on internal control over financial reporting of the Registered Public Accounting

Firm are included in the annual shareholders report for the year ended December 31 2008

attached to this Form 10K as Exhibit 13 and are incorporated herein by reference

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS

There have not been any changes in the Corporations internal control over

financial reporting or in other factors that could materially affect or are reasonably

likely to materially affect these controls during the fourth quarter of 2008 except for

the actions taken during 2008 to remediate the material weakness The changes are

addressed in Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and include

changes in staffing and procedures to adequately maintain risk identification and

monitoring of loans for calculating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

Item 9b Other Information

The Corporation had no other events that should have been disclosed on Form

8K that were not already disclosed on such form
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PART LII

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Corporation has adopted Code of Ethios that applies to oil Direotors

end Senioo Managers including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

The Curporations Oirectors end Senioc Manegeeent Code of Ethics is available on First

National bank of Creencasties website at http//www.fnbgc.com under the About FNR tab

All other information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference from

Toeer Rancorps definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

filed pursuant to Regulation 14A

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item ii is incorporated by reference from Tower

Oancorps definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation i4A

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

Information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference from Tower

Oencorp Inc.s definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

filed pursuant to Regulation 14A end Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference from Tower

Oancorps definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation iSA

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference from Tower

Rancorps definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed

pursuant to Regulation 14A
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

List of Finanoiai Statements

The following oonsoiidatad finanoiai statamants of

Towar Banoorp and its subsidiary inuiuded in the

annuai report of the registrant to its

sharehoiders for the year ended Peuember 31 2008

attarhed to this Form 10F as Exhibit 13

are inrorporated by referenoe rn Item

Consolidated balanoe sheets Peuember 3i

2008 and 2007

Consoiidated statements of inoome Years

ended Deoember Si 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated statements of stookhoideos

equity Years ended Peuember 3i 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated statements of rash flows Years

ended Derember 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to ronsolidated finanoial statements

Derember 31 2008

List of Finanoial Statement Soheduies

All finanrial statement soheduies for whioh provision is

made in the applirable auoounting regulation of the

Seourities and Exohange Commission are not

required under the related instruotions or are

inapplirabie and therefore have been omitted

Listing of Exhibits

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Nerger by and between Tower Sanoorp

Ino and Sraystone Finanrial Corp dated as of November 12

2008 inoorporated by referenre to Exhibit 2.1 of Tower

Banoorp Ino.s Form S4 Registration No 333lt6535

filed Derember 31 2008 as amended

3.1 Artioles of Inoorporation of Tower Banoorp mo inoorporated

by referenre to Exhibit 3.1 of Tower Banoorp Ino.s Form lOQ

for the quarter ended September 30 2005

3.2 Bylaws of Tower Banoorp mo inoorporated by referenoe to

Exhibit 3u of Tower Banoorp Ino.s Form 8-F filed January 13

2006

10 Material oontrauts

10.1 Change of Control Agreement of Jeffrey Shank dated as of

September 25 2002 inoorporated by referenue to Exhibit 99.4

of Tower Banoorp Ino.s Form lOQ for the quarter ended

September 30 2002
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10.2 change of control Agreement of Franklin Klink III dated

as of November 26 2001 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2001

10.3 change of control Agreement of Donald Kunkle dated

as of January 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2001

10.4 change of control Agreement of John McDowell Sr dated

as of December 23 1998 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s Form 10K for the year ended

December 31 1998

10.5 Tower Bancorp Inc.s NonQualified Stock Option Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Tower Bancorp

Inc.s Registration Statement on Form S8 File No 333-

40661

10.6 Tower Bancorp Inc.s Stock Option Plan for Outside

Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Tower

Bancorp Inc.s Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No

33340661

10.7 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement of Jeffrey

Shank dated as of September 25 2002 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended September 30 2002

10.8 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank

of Greencastle Group Term Replacement Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s

Registration Statement on Form S4 File No 333130485

10.9 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank

of Greencastle Group Term Replacement Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s

Registration Statement on Form S4 File No 333-130485

10.10 Form of Amendment and Restatement of the First National Bank

of Greencastle Executive Bonus Agreement incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Tower Bancorp Inc.s

Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-130485

10.11 First National Bank of Greencastle Employees Stock Ownership

Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Tower

Bancorp Inc.s Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No

33340661

59



13 Annual report to security holders filed herewith

21 Subsidiaries of the registrant filed herewith

23.1 Consent of independent registered public accounting firm

filed herewith

31.1 CertIfication of Chief Executive Officer pursuant

to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive

Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section

1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 filed

herewith

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial

Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section

1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed

herewith

All other exhibits for which provision is made in the applicable

accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not

required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore

have been omitted
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant ta the requirements ef Sestian 13 as 15d at the Sesurities Exshenge
Art at 1934 she registrant has duly reused thie repast ta be signed en its behalf hy the

undersigned thereunta duly eatharized

TOWER BANCORP INC

Registrant
By /s/ Jeff Shank

Jeft Shank
Psesident/CEG

Psinsipel Fxesutive Officer
By /s/ Franklin Klink III

Franklin Flink III

Treasurer Psinsipal Finenaisi

and Aasaanting Oftiser
bated Marsh 13 2009

Pursuant ta the requirements at Sestian 13 as 15d at the Sesasities Rxshsnge
Art at 1934 this repast has been signed by the tallawing persans an behalf at the

Registrant end in the sepasities end an the dates indisated

Signature Title Pate

/5/ Jeff Shank President

Uisestas Marsh 13 2009
Jeff Shank

/S/ Resmit Hiaks Chairman at the

Beard Disestas Marsh 13 2009
Nermit Bisks

/S/ Frederic Frederick Vise Chairmen at the

Beard Bisester Marsh 13 2009
Frederic Frederick

/S/ James Craig Jr Direstar Marsh 13 2009

James Craig Jr

/S/ Lais Fasten Disestes Marsh 13 2009

teis Fasten

/S/ Mark Cayman Bisestes Marsh 13 2009

Mask Cayman

/S/ Patricia Casbeugh Bisestes Marsh 13 2009

Petsisis Cerbaugh

/S/ Harry Jehnstan Direstes Marsh 13 2009

Barry Jehnsten

/S/ Teszy Randall Disestas Marsh 13 2009

Terry Randall
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Eb
smith Elliott Keams Company LLC

Ccrlifled Public AcccunbnL Conullant

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Tower Bancorp Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of

December31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the years
in the three-year period ended December31 2008 Tower Bancorp Inc.s management is responsible for these

financial statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Corporation changed its policy for accounting

for stock-based compensation in 2006 As discussed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements the Corporation changed its

method of accounting for split-dollar post-retirement benefits in 2008 as required by the provisions of EITF 06-04

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiarys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO and our report dated March 13 2009 expressed an adverse opinion

/5/ SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS COMPANY LLC

Chambersburg Pennsylvania

March 13 2009



smith flliott Kearn Company LLC

CrUfjed IJubhc Accountant Conaultant

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Tower Bancorp Inc

We have audited Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiarys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2008 based on criteria established in internal Control Integrated Franework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission COSO Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiarys management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included

in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Corporations internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit of internal control over financial reporting

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable

basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets

that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also protections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

material weakness is control deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the Corporations annual or interim financial

statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis The following material weakness has been identified and included in

managements assessment The Corporation did not maintain adequate risk identification and monitoring of loans Weaknesses

include an ineffective loan review function incomplete management information system inadequate information to support the

borrowers ability to service the loans inconsistent loan documentation and ineffective evaluation of the components of the allowance

for loan losses These conditions result in weakness in managements ability to administer the loan portfolio and to determine the

adequacy of the allowance tbr loan losses This material weakness was considered in determining the nature timing and extent of

audit tests applied in our audit of the 2008 financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated March 13 2009 on
those financial statements

In our opinion because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives

of the control criteria Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary have not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Coot ml Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO



EIb
Smith Il1ioU Kearna Company LLC

CcrLiPud Public AccounLunn CcnnultinLu

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of Tower Bancorp Inc

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity and cash

flows of Tower Bancorp Inc and subsidiary and our report dated March 13 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion

IS SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS COMPANY LLC

Chambersburg Pennsylvania

March 13 2009



MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To our Shareholders

Tower Bancorp Inc

Greencastle Pennsylvania

The management of Tower Bancorp Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiary the Corporation has the

responsibility for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial

reporting Management maintains comprehensive system of internal control to provide reasonable assurance of the

proper authorization of transactions the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of the financial records The system of

internal control provides for appropriate division of responsibility and is documented by written policies and procedures
that are communicated to employees Tower Bancorp Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiary maintain an internal auditing

program under the supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which independently assesses the

effectiveness of the system of internal control and recommends possible improvements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporations management including its Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the Corporation has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31 2008 using the Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

material weakness is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the Corporations annual or interim

financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis Management identified the following material

weakness in internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

The Corporation did not maintain adequate risk identification and monitoring of loans

Weaknesses include an ineffective loan review function incomplete management
information system inadequate information to support the borrowers ability to service the

loans inconsistent loan documentation and ineffective evaluation of the components of

the allowance for loan losses These conditions result in weakness in managements

ability to administer the loan portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses

As result of the material weakness identified above management has concluded that Tower Bancorp
Inc and subsidiary did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the COSO



To our Shareholders

Tower Bancorp Inc

The independent registered public accounting firm of Smith Elliott Kearns Company LLC has issued

an audit report on the Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 The accounting

firms audit report on internal control over financial reporting is included in this financial report

/S/ Jeffrey Shank IS Franklin Klink III

Jeffrey Shank Franklin Klink III

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 13 2009 March 13 2009

REMEDIA TION OF MATERIAL WEAKNESS

The Corporation continues to develop and implement plans to address our material weakness

Management has taken the following steps to improve the internal controls over financial reporting

Management has maintained full time Loan Review Officer The Loan Review Officer has been

reviewing the adequacy of managements risk identification of loans for calculating the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses The Corporation has maintained full time Credit Administration Officer and full time Credit Analyst to

assist in the identification and monitoring of risk within the loan portfolio In addition consulting firm was engaged to

assist in reviewing the adequacy of managements risk identification processes and ratings The loan policy was redrafted

to better address risk identification of loans consulting firm was engaged to assist with the new loan policy

Management reviewed the management information systems particularly the data used for loan risk assessment The data

has been updated to reflect current risk assessments New procedures were implemented to strengthen the collection and

filing of information to support borrowers ability to service loans The Board of Directors formed Compliance

Committee to oversee the development and implementation of the actions to remediate the material weakness

consulting firm was engaged to assist the Compliance Committee



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

000 omitted

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 10757 16770

Federal funds sold 20081

Interest bearing deposits with banks 802

Investment securities available for sale 76451 83846

Restricted Bank stock 4788 2914

Loans

Commercial financial and aicultural 27840 30444

Real estate Mortgages 360696 331521

Real estate Construction and land development 15714 20 134

Consumer 14853 17059

419103 399158

Net deferred loan fees costs and discounts 209 679
Less Allowance for loan losses 4597 3854

Total loans 414297 394625

Premises equipment furniture and fixtures 11834 9861

Real estate owned other than premises 2316 2313

Accrued interest receivable 1855 1861

Cash surrender value of life insurance 11208 10768

Deferred income taxes 3107

Goodwill 16558 16558

Other intangible assets 1583 1994

Other assets 973 45

Total assets 556529 561636



2008 2007

000 omitted

LIABILITIES

Deposits in domestic offices

Demand noninterest bearing 44205 46860

Savings 216021 223904

Time 161085 169166

Total deposits 421311 439930

Liabilities for other borrowed funds 59525 37735

Accrued interest payable 637 999

Deferred income taxes 1657

Other liabilities 4299 2901

Total liabilities 485772 483222

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Stockholders equity

Common Stock no par value authorized 5000000 shares

issued 2420481 shares 2225 2225

Additional paid-in capital 34787 34831

Retained earnings 40278 40696

Accumulated other comprehensive income 2375 4558

74915 82310

Less Cost of treasury stock 105001 shares 2008

98055 shares 2007 4158 3896

Total stockholders equity 70757 78414

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 556529 561636

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

-6-



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted

Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and fees on loans 27023 28490 22384

Interest and dividends on investment securities

Taxable 2467 1618 1800

Federal tax exempt 1196 1278 1227

Interest on federal funds sold 258 1961 348

Interest on deposits with banks 30 16 40

Total interest income 30974 33363 25799

Interest Expense

Interest on time certificates of deposit of

100000 or more 1248 1561 896

Interest on other deposits 7002 10367 6482

Interest on bonowed funds 2.040 2.082 2495

Total interest expense 10290 14010 9873

Net interest income 20684 19353 15926

Provision for loan losses 1375 600 360

Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 19309 18753 15566

Other Income

Investment services income 713 961 413

Service charges on deposit accounts 1897 1808 1523

Other service charges collection and exchange

charges commissions and fees 1241 1525 1084

Investment securities gains 269 1886 3923

Other income 397 531 381

4.517 6711 7324

Other Expenses

Salaries wages and other employee benefits 8581 81 88 6949

Occupancy expense 1132 1058 853

Furniture and equipment expenses 2953 2571 2220

Merger expense 300

Impairment expense 2607

Other operating expenses 4651 4.279 4.018

20224 16096 14.040

Income before income taxes 3602 9368 8850

Applicable income tax expense 424 2331 2718

Net income 3.178 7.037 6132

Earnings per share

l3asic earnings per share 1.37 3.00 2.92

Weighted average shares outstanding 2316697 2345286 2103487
Diluted earnings per share 1.37 2.99 2.87

Weighted average shares outstanding 2320496 2353426 2137168

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral pail of these statements

-7-



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Accumulated

Additional

Common Paid-in

Stock Capital

Other Total

Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders

Earnings Income Stock Equity

Balance at December 2005 2225 6.760 31618 9557 1771 48389

Comprehensive incone

Net income

Net unrealized gain on available

tbr sale securities net of tax 605

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared on common

stock 0.74
per share

Merger activity

Stock
options granted

Stock options exercised

Purchase of treasury stock

10.989 shares

Sale oftreasuiy stock 8619 shares

Balance at December 2006

1602

28.009

108

69

1602

72 27937

108

69

Cash dividends declared on common

stock 1.06 per share

Stock options granted

Stock option.s exercised

Purchase of treasury stock

43122 shares

Sale oftreasuiy stock 8345 shares

Balance at December 2007

Comprehensive income

Net laconic

Net unrealized gain loss on available

for sale securities net of tax 3572

Total comprehensive income loss

2489

108

71

2489

108

71

3178

6933

3755

Cash dividends declared on conanin

stock 1.12
per share

Split dollar life insurance accounting

Stock options granted

Stock options exercised

Purchase of treasury stock

14409 shares

Sale oftreasuiy stock 7463 shares

Balance at December 2008

78

52

2595

1001

2595

1001

78

52

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

-8-

000 omitted

6132 6132

1174 1174

7306

Comprehensive income

Net income

Net unrealized gain loss on available

tbr sale securities net of tax $3180

Total comprehensive income

30 813 843

32 295 327

2225 34810 36148 10.731 2361 81553

7037 7037

6173 6173

864

1853 1853

16 318 302

2225 34831 40696 4558 3896 78414

3178

6933 ___________

558 558

70 296 226

2225 34787 40278 2375 4158 70757



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Net loss on sale of property and equipment

Provisions for loan loss

Granting of Stock Options

Gain on sale of investment securities

Provision for deferred taxes

Impairment of investments

Increase decrease in

Other assets

Mortgage servicing valuation

Interest receivable

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Increase decrease in

Interest payable

Other liabilities

Other net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Net mci-ease in loans

Purchases of property and equipment

Net decrease iii interest bearing deposits with banks

Maturity/sales of available for sale securities

Purchases of available thr sale securities

Sales of fixed assets

Purchase of restricted bank stock

Cash acquired in acquisition

Purchase price of shares exchanged for cash

Net cash provided used by investing activities

2007

000 omitted

7037 6132

1.067 1267 915

48

1375 600 360

78 108 108

269 1886 3923

1084 342 12

2607

1049 754 292

52 301

20 738

440 85 378

362 113

307 61 151

2730 121 1066
4594

2935

31844 13038 11822

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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2008

3178

2006

112

5514 7084 2098

20800

4027
802

12427

16924

1.012

8416

1474
97

9260

12391

19949
2593
3086

47407

16728



TOWER BANCORP INC AND ITS WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2007

000 omitted

18717 30095 9599

38885 13540 18531

18615 1081

15609 5000
558 1853 813

296 302 226

2595 2489 2017

20317 8596 11536

6013 2642 2384

16770 14128 11744

10757 16770 14128

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

10-

2008 2006

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase decrease in deposits

Borrowings payments on short term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Payments on long-term borrowings

Purchase of treasury stock

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock

Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided used by financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing

and financing activities

Unrealized gain loss on securities available

for sale net of tax effects

Impairment of investments net of tax

Additional paid-in capital issued in merger

10653

1948

8654

1721

14005

2861

6173

9243

2783

1174

28009



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Tower Bancorp Inc the Corporation is bank holding company whose primary activity consists of owning

and supervising its subsidiary The First National Bank of Greencastle which is engaged in providing banking

and bank related services in South Central Pennsylvania principally Franklin and Fulton Counties and

Washington County Maryland Its sixteen 16 offices are located in Greencastle Quincy Shady Grove

Launch Waynesboro Chambersburg Rouzerville McConnellsburg Needmore Fort Loudon and

Mercersburg Pennsylvania Hancock and Hagerstown Maryland

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary

The First National Bank of Greencastle the Bank All significant intercompany transactions and accounts

have been eliminated

FNB Mortgage Brokers Inc was wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and was acquired in the merger with

FNB Financial Corporation in 2006 FNB Mortgage Brokers Inc was dissolved by the Corporation on

February 28 2007

First Fulton County Community Development Corporation FFCCDC is wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Bank and was acquired in the merger with FNB Financial Corporation in 2006 The purpose of FFCCDC is to

serve the needs of low to moderate income individuals and small business in Fulton County under the

Community Development and Regulatory Improvement Act of 1995 FFCCDC has been inactive since it was

acquired

During 2006 the Corporation completed the merger of FNB Financial Corporation and these operations are

included subsequent to the purchase See Note 18 for further discussion

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the

allowance for losses on loans and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in

satisfaction of loans In connection with the determination of the allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed

real estate management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate future

additions to the allowances may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions In addition

regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the Corporations

allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate Such agencies may require the Corporation to

recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about information available to them at the time

of their examination Because of these factors managements estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan

portfolio and the related allowance may change in the near term
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Investment Securities

The Corporations investments in securities are classified in three categories and accounted for as follows

Trading Securities Securities held principally for resale in the near term are classified as trading securities

and recorded at their fair values Unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are included in other

income

Securities to be Held to Maturity Bonds and notes for which the Corporation has the positive intent and

ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of

discounts which are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity

Securities Available for Sale Securities available for sale consist of securities not classified as trading

securities nor as securities to be held to maturity These are securities that management intends to use as

part of its asset and liability management strategy and may be sold in response to changes in interest rates

resultant prepayment risk and other related factors Securities available for sale are recorded at their fair

values

Unrealized holding gains and losses net of tax on securities available for sale are reported as net amount in

other comprehensive income

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available for sale are determined using the specific-identification

method

The Corporation had no trading or held to maturity securities in 2008 or 2007

Investments include equity securities with concentration in the financial services sector amounting to

$18483000 and $33861000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Corporations investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate market risk currency and

credit risks Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to

changes in the value of the investments it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term

would materially affect investment assets reported in the financial statements In addition recent economic

uncertainty and market events have led to unprecedented volatility in currency commodity credit and equity

markets culminating in failures of some banking and financial services firms and Government intervention to

solidify others These recent events underscore the level of investment risk associated with the current

economic environment and accordingly the level of risk in the Corporations investments

Restricted Bank Stock

The Corporation is required to maintain minimum investment balances in The Federal Reserve Bank Federal

Home Loan Bank and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank These investments are carried at cost because they are

not actively traded and have no readily determinable market value

Premises Equipment Furniture and Fixtures and Depreciation

Premises equipment and furniture and fixtures are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation

has been provided generally on the straight-line method and is computed over the estimated useful lives of the

various assets as follows

Years

Premises 15-40

Equipment furniture and fixtures 3-15

Repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred Land is not depreciated

12-



Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Foreclosed Property

Foreclosed properties includes properties for which the institution has taken physical possession in connection

with loan foreclosure proceedings See Note for further details

At the time of foreclosure foreclosed real estate is recorded at fair value less cost to sell which becomes the

propertys new basis Any write-downs based on the assets fair value at date of acquisition are charged to the

allowance for loan losses If an increase in basis results it is classified as non-interest income unless there has

been prior charge-off in which case recovery to the allowance for loan losses is recorded After foreclosure

these assets are carried as other assets at the new basis Improvements to the property are added to the basis

of the assets Costs incurred in maintaining foreclosed real estate and subsequent adjustments to the carrying

amount of the property are classified as other expenses

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal reduced by unearned discount deferred loan origination

fees and an allowance for loan losses Unearned discount on installment loans is recognized as income over the

terms of the loans by the interest method Interest on other loans is calculated by using the simple interest

method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding

The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses charged to expense Loans are

charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collectibility of the principal

is unlikely The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on

existing loans that may become uncollectible based on evaluations of the collectibility of loans and prior loan

loss experience The evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the

loan portfolio overall portfolio quality review of specific problem loans and current economic conditions that

may affect the borrowers ability to pay

Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount amortized as an

adjustment of the related loans yield The Corporation is amortizing these amounts over the contractual life of

the related loans

Nonaccrual/Irnpaired Loans

The accrual of interest income on loans ceases when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more and

collateral is inadequate to cover principal and interest or immediately if in the opinion of management full

collection is unlikely Interest accrued but not collected as of the date of placement on nonacerual status is

reversed and charged against current income unless fully collateralized Subsequent payments received are

either applied to the outstanding principal balance or recorded as interest income depending on managements

assessment of the ultimate collectibility of principal Interest income generally is not recognized on specific

impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is remote Interest income on such loans is recognized only

to the extent of interest payments received

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the

Corporation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement The larger commercial loans are evaluated for impairment

Impairment is measured on loan-by-loan basis by comparing the contractual principal and interest payments to

the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans

obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Consumer loans

such as residential mortgages and installments comprised of smaller balance homogeneous loans are

collectively evaluated for impairment Interest income generally is not recognized on specific impaired loans

unless the likelihood of further loss is remote Interest income on such loans is recognized only to the extent of

interest payments received
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Earnings per Share of Common Stock

Earnings per share of common stock were computed based on weighted average shares outstanding For diluted

earnings per share net income is divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding plus the

incremental number of shares added as result of converting common stock equivalents The corporations

common stock equivalents consist of outstanding stock options See Note 10 for further details

reconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding used to calculate basic net income per share and

diluted net income per share follows There is no adjustment to net income to arrive at diluted net income per

share

2008 2007 2006

Weighted average shares outstanding basic 2316697 2345286 2103487

Impact of common stock equivalents 3.799 8140 33681

Weighted average shares outstanding diluted 232Q4% 2353.426 7l68

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the underlying fair value of merged entities Goodwill

is accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets and is assessed for impairment at least annually and as triggering events occur In making

this assessment management relies on number of factors including operating results business plans economic

projections anticipated future cash flows and transactions and market place data There are inherent

uncertainties related to these factors and managements judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill

impairment Changes in economic and operating conditions could result in goodwill impairment in future

periods Disruptions to the business such as end market conditions and protracted economic weakness

unexpected significant declines in operating results and market capitalization declines may result in goodwill

impairment These types of events and the resulting analysis could result in additional charges for goodwill and

other asset impairments in the future See Note 18 for further details

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include premiums from purchases of core deposit relationships acquired in the merger with

FNB Financial Corporation The core deposit intangible is being amortized over ten years on sum-of-the-

years-digits basis Also included in intangible assets are mortgage servicing rights resulting from loans serviced

for others discussed further in Note See Note 18 for further details

Loan Servicing

The cost of mortgage servicing rights is amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net

servicing revenues Impairment of mortgage servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights

Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on current market interest rate For purposes of

measuring impairment the rights are stratified based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying

loans product type investor type interest rate and term

Federal Income Taxes

For financial reporting purposes the provision for loan losses charged to operating expense is based on

managements judgment whereas for federal income tax purposes the amount allowable under present tax law

is deducted Additionally deferred compensation is charged to operating expense
in the period the liability is

incurred for financial reporting purposes whereas for federal income tax purposes these expenses are deducted

when paid There are also differences between the amount of depreciation intangible amortization and deferred

compensation expensed for tax and financial reporting purposes and an income tax effect caused by the

adjustment to fair value for available for sale securities As result of these timing differences deferred income

taxes are provided in the financial statements See Note 13 for further details
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Federal Income Taxes Continued

When tax returns are filed it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination

by the taxing authorities while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the

amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained The benefit of tax position is recognized in the

financial statements in the period during which based on all available evidence management believes it is more

likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination including the resolution of appeals or

litigation processes if any Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions Tax positions

that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is

more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority The portion

of the benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above would

be reflected as liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any

associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits would be classified as additional income taxes

in the statement of income

At December 2008 there was no liability for unrecognized tax benefits

Cash Flows

For
purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows the Corporation has defined cash and cash equivalents as highly

liquid debt instruments with maturities of three months or less They are included in the balance sheet caption

cash and due from banks As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles the Corporation has

elected to present the net increase or decrease in deposits in banks loans and deposits in the Statements of Cash

Flows

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Generally accepted accounting principles GAAP require disclosure of fair value information about financial

instruments whether or not recognized in the balance sheet In cases where quoted market prices are not available

fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques Those techniques are

sigmficantly affected by the assumptions used including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows In

that regard the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and in

many cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments GAAP exclude certain financial

instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements Accordingly the aggregate fair

value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the corporation See Note 19 for further details

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating fair values of financial

instruments as disclosed herein

Cash and Cash Equivalents The canying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate their

fair value

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks Interest bearing balances with banks having maturity greater than

one year have estimated fair values using discounted cash flows based on current market interest rates

Securities to be Held to Maturity and Securities Available for Sale Fair values for investment securities are

based on quoted market prices
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Fair Values of Financial Instruments Continued

Loans Receivable For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit

risk fair values are based on carrying values Fair values for fixed rate loans are estimated using

discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to

borrowers of similar credit quality Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow

analyses or underlying collateral values where applicable

Deposit Liabilities The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are by definition equal to the amount

payable on demand at the reporting date that is their carrying amounts The carrying amounts of variable

rate fixed-term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the

reporting date Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposits and IRAs are estimated using discounted

cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered to schedule of aggregated expected

maturities on time deposits

Federal FuncL Purchased and Other Borrowed Funds The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased

borrowings under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings maturing within 90 days

approximate their fair values Fair values of other borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow

analyses based on the Corporations current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing

arrangements

Accrued Interest The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values

OffBalanceSheet Instruments The Corporation generally does not charge commitment fees Fees for

standby letters of credit and their off-balance-sheet instruments are not significant

Advertising

The Corporation expenses advertising costs as they are incurred Advertising expense for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $370594 371104 and 332246 respectively

Trust Assets

Assets held by the Corporation in fiduciary or agency capacity are not included in the consolidated financial

statements since such assets are not assets of the Corporation In accordance with banking industry practice

income from fiduciary activities is generally recognized on the cash basis which is not significantly different from

amounts that would have been recognized on the accrual basis

Comprehensive Income

The Corporation follows generally accepted accounting principles when reporting comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity from transactions and other events from nonowner

sources It includes all changes in equity except those resulting from investments by stockholders and distributions

to stockholders Comprehensive income includes net income and certain elements of other comprehensive

income such as foreign currency transactions accounting for futures contracts employers accounting for

pensions and accounting for certain investments in debt and equity securities

The Corporation has elected to report its comprehensive income in the statement of changes in stockholders

equity The only element of other comprehensive income that the Corporation has is the unrealized gains or

losses on available for sale securities
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Comprehensive Income Continued

The components of the change in net unrealized gains losses on securities are as follows

2008 2007 2006

000 Omitted
Gross unrealized holding gains losses arising

during the year 12843 7467 5702

Reclassification adjustment for impairment losses

recognized in net income 2607

Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in

net income 269 1886 3923
Net unrealized holding gains losses before taxes 10505 9353 1779

Tax effect 3572 3180 605
Net change 6.933 $6.1i L1.i14

Fair Value Measurements

SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value

establishes three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurement and enhances disclosure

requirements for fair value measurements The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to

the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date The three levels are defined as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets

or liabilities in active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and

liabilities in active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability

either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the financial instrument

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value

measurement

In February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position No 157-2 FSP 157-2 which delayed the effective date of

SFAS 57 for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for those items that are recognized

or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis FSP 157-2 defers the effective date of

SFAS 157 for such nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15

2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years Thus the Corporation has only partially applied SFAS 157

Those items affected by FSP 157-2 include other real estate owned OREO goodwill and core deposit

intangibles

Following is description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value as well as

the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy

Securities

Where quoted prices are available in an active market securities are classified within level of the

valuation hierarchy Level securities would include highly liquid government bonds mortgage products

and exchange traded equities If quoted market prices are not available then fair values are estimated by

using pricing models quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flow

Level securities would include U.S agency securities mortgage-backed agency securities obligations

of states and political subdivisions and certain corporate asset backed and other securities In certain

cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation securities are

classified within level of the valuation hierarchy Currently all equity securities held by the holding

company with total fair value of 18483000 are considered to be Level Securities All others held

by the bank with total fair value of 57968.000 are considered to be Level
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Fair Value Measurements Continued

Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale are required to be measured at lower of cost or fair value Under SFAS No 157

market value is to represent fair value Management obtains quotes or bids on all or part of these loans

directly from the purchasing financial institutions Premiums received or to be received on the quotes or

bids are indicative of the fact that cost is lower than fair value At December 2008 there were no

loans held for sale

Impaired loans

SFAS No 157 applies to loans measured for impairment using the practical expedients permitted by

SFAS No 114 Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan including impaired loans measured at

an observable market price if available or at the fair value of the loans collateral if the loan is

collateral dependent Fair value of the loans collateral when the loan is dependent on collateral is

determined by appraisals or independent valuation which is then adjusted for the cost related to

liquidation of the collateral At December 31 2008 there were 3653000 in loans that the Corporation

has identified as impaired See Note

Other Real Estate Owned

Certain assets such as other real estate owned OREO are measured at the lower of cost or fair value less

cost to sell Fair values are determined by appraisals or comparisons to similar properties

The Corporation had no liabilities subject to fair value reporting requirements at December 31 2008

summary of assets at December 2008 measured at estimated fair value on recurring basis is as

follows

Total Fair

Value

Level Level Level Measurements

000 omitted

Securities available for sale $18483 $57968 76751

Impaired loans 3653 3653

JL43 61.621 $JQj04

Stock Option Plans

The Corporation maintains two stock-based compensation plans These plans provide for the granting of stock

options to the Corporations employees and directors The Corporation has historically accounted for the plans

using the intrinsic-value method under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No 25 and

related Interpretations In December 2004 the FASB issued final FAS Statement No 123R Share-Based

Paynient which requires financial statement recognition of compensation cost for stock options and other

stock-based awards based on use of fair value determination on the date of grant and expensing over the

applicable vesting period

As result of adopting Statement l23R on January 2006 the Corporations income before taxes and net

income for the year ended December 31 2008 are 20000 and 13000 less for the year ended December 31

2007 are 38000 and 25000 less and for the year ended December 31 2006 are 32000 and 11000 less

respectively than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion 25 Basic

and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31 2007 are 0.01 and 0.01 less respectively

than if the Corporation had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion 25 There is

no difference for the year ended December 31 2008 The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the

date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

See Note 10 for further details concerning the Corporations stock option plans
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 and 2006 financial statements to conform to reporting for

2008

Note Investment Securities

The investment securities portfolio is comprised of securities classified as available for sale at December 31
2008 and 2007 resulting in investment securities available for sale being carried at fair value

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31 were

Gross Gross
Amortized Fair

Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Value

Gains Losses

000 omitted

2008

Mortgage-backed securities 13948 303 14243

Corporate bonds 4272 1031 3241

Equities 23092 1874 6483 18483

Obligations of state and political subdivisions 38738 1874 128 40484

8005Q 4051 $i5O 76451

2007

Mortgage-backed securities 14929 260 12 $15177
Corporate bonds 1697 140 1564

Equities 27784 8167 2090 33861

Obligations of state and political subdivisions 32.529 737 22 33244

76.939 j.7J $_____ 8384

The fair values of investment securities available for sale at December 31 2008 by contractual maturity are

shown below Contractual maturities will differ from expected maturities because borrowers may have the right

to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Securities Available

for Sale

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

000 omitted

Due in one year or less 2380 2390
Due after one year through five years 7851 7728
Due after five years through ten years 20426 21195
Due after ten years 12353 12412

43010 43725

Mortgage-backed securities 13948 14243

Equity securities 23.092 18483

80050 _____
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Note Investment Securities Continued

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities available for sale during 2008 2007 and 2006 were

12427000 9260000 and 47407000 respectively Gross realized gains and losses on those sales and

maturities were $1078000 and 809000 for 2008 $1900000 and 14000 for 2007 and 4025315 and

102297 for 2006 respectively

Securities carried at 17872872 and $15273317 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively were pledged

to secure public funds and for other purposes as required or permitted by law

Restricted bank stock includes

2008 2007

000 omitted

$1025 133

3683 2701

80 80

$4.78 52.914

The following table shows the Corporations gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment

category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position at

December 31 2008 and 2007

Description

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate bonds

Equities

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions

Total

Description

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate bonds

Equities

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions

Total

Less than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

2049

2475 342

6227 2208

6028 127

$16719 $85

Less than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

190

854 108

7988 1647

Fair

Value

1131

1312

10203

Total ________

Unrealized

Losses

12

140

2090

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on quarterly basis but

managements intent is to hold all investments until matuiity unless market economic or specific investment

concerns warrant sale of securities Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the

fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the

intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow

for any anticipated recovery in fair value

Federal Reserve Bank stock

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Atlantic Central Bankers Bank

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

2058

3241 1031

10916 6483

6028 127

22243 $2650

2008

000 omitted

12 Months or Greater

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

766 689

4489 4275

$5A64 4965

2007

000 omitted

12 Months or Greater

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

941 11

458 32

2215 443

1236 6041 22 7277 22

10268 $9655 $i08 $J9923 $2.2Q4
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Note Investment Securities Continued

At December 31 2008 nine mortgage-backed securities five corporate bonds ninety-one 91 equities

and eighteen 18 obligations of state and political subdivisions had unrealized losses During 2008 the

Corporation incurred impairment expense for fifteen 15 of the equity securities in financial institutions The

total unrealized loss written off as other-than-temporarily impaired was 2607000 Management has

determined that no other declines are considered other than temporary

At December 31 2007 five mortgage-backed securities three corporate bonds sixty 60 equities and

fifteen 15 obligations of state and political subdivisions had unrealized losses Management has determined

that no declines are deemed to be other than temporary at December 31 2008

Note Allowance for Loan Losses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted

Balance at beginning ofperiod 3854 3610 2129

Recoveries 84 80 45

Provision for possible loan losses charged to income 1375 600 360

Additions for acquired credit risk 1163
Total 5313 4290 3697

Losses 716 436 87

Balance at end of period 597 $3S5A

Note Premises Equipment Furniture and Fixtures

Accumulated Depreciated

Cost Depreciation Cost

000 omitted

2008

Premises including land 1910 14319 $4719 9600

Equipment furniture and fixtures 8270 6036 2234

Totals December 2008 k22589 SJ75 $iL834

2007

Premises including land 1.626 12674 $4504 8170

Equipment furniture and fixtures 7238 5547 1691

Totals December 31 2007 519912 iQQ

Depreciation expense amounted to 965411 in 2008 837005 in 2007 and 667381 in 2006

Note Real Estate Owned Other Than Premises

Included in real estate owned other than premises are certain properties which are located adjacent to the main

office as well as in Chambersburg The Corporation intends to hold these properties for future expansion

purposes in order to protect its competitive position and are renting certain of these properties until such time as

the Corporation decides they are needed The depreciated cost of these properties was 985000 and

2288000 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Also included in real estate owned other than premises at December 2008 and 2007 is foreclosed property of

$331005 and $25000 respectively
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Note Loans

Related Party Loans

The Corporations subsidiary has granted loans to the officers and directors of the Corporation and its subsidiary

and to their associates Related party loans are made on substantially the same terms including interest rates

and collateral as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not

involve more than normal risk of collectibility The aggregate dollar amount of these loans and the related

activity for 2008 and 2007 was as follows

2008 2007

Beginning balance 4247174 4527038

New loans 2048000 1096500

Repayments 3148346 1376363

Ending balance $3.l42 $4247175

Outstanding loans to bank employees totaled $4765693 and 3141609 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Loan Maturities

The following table shows the maturities and sensitivities of loans to changes in interest rates based upon

contractual maturities and terms as of December 2008

Due over

Due within but within Due over Nonaccruing

one year years years loans Total

000 omitted

Loans at predetermined

interest rates 18253 $44036 60592 100 $122981

Loans at floating or

adjustable interest

rates 38512 38987 214098 43t6 295913

Total 56765 83023 $274690 $4416 $414S94

These amounts have not been reduced by the allowance for possible loan losses

Loans Serviced for Others

During 2005 the Corporation began participation in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburghs FHLB
Mortgage Partnership Finance Program Under this program certain loans are sold to FHLB but the

Corporation retains the servicing rights to these loans The outstanding balance of loans sold to FHLB was

30136800 and 27783800 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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Note Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Corporation is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business

to meet the financial needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates

These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit Those

instruments involve to varying degrees elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount

recognized in the balance sheets The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement

the Corporation has in particular classes of financial instruments

The Corporations exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written is

represented by the contractual amount of those instruments The Corporation uses the same credit policies in

making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on balance sheet instruments

Contract or Notional Amount

2008 2007

000 omitted

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit

risk at December 31

Commitments to extend credit $23519 $45949
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees

143 209
written

$26662 $49158

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of
any

condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination

clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The

Corporation evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral

obtained if deemed necessary by the Corporation upon extension of credit is based on managements credit

evaluation of the customer Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable inventory real estate

equipment and income-producing commercial properties

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Corporation

to guarantee the performance of customer to third party Those guarantees are primarily issued to support

public and private borrowing arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the

same as that involved in extending loans to customers The Corporation holds collateral supporting those

commitments when deemed necessary by management

Note Nonaccrual/Impaired Loans

Loans 90 days or more past due still accruing interest were as follows at December

000 omitted

2008 2007 2006

Commercial loans 75

Real estate mortgages 155 993 336

Consumer loans 29 57

Total 259 $1001
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Note Nonaccrualllmpaired Loans Continued

The following table shows the principal balances of nonaccrual loans as of December 31

000 omitted

2008 2007 2006

Nonaccrual loans 4.416 4.397 688

Interest income that would have been

accrued at original contract rates 268 229 51

Amount recognized as interest income 31 73 29

Foregone revenue 237 156 22

The following table reflects impairment of loans recognized in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles

2008 2007

000 Omitted

Recorded investment at December 31 3653 7059

Average recorded investment during the year 3995 7408

Allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans at December 86 940

Interest income recognized for cash payments received during the year 282 290

Note Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains profit-sharing plan for those employees who meet the eligibility requirements set

forth in the plan Contributions to the plan are based on Corporation performance and are at the discretion of the

Corporations Board of Directors Substantially all of the Corporations employees are covered by the plan and

the contributions charged to operations were $412000 352100 and $240000 for 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

As result of the merger with FNB Financial Corporation in 2006 the Corporation acquired 40 1k plan

which covered all employees of the former FNB Financial Corporation who had attained the age of 20 and

completed six months of full-time service The plan provided for the Corporation to match employee

contributions to maximum of 5% of annual compensation The Corporation also had the option to make

additional discretionary contributions to the plan based upon the Corporations performance and subject to

approval by the Board of Directors The Corporations total expense for this plan was 83528 for the year

ended December 31 2006 This plan was terminated as of December 31 2006 All employees covered under

this plan were moved to the Corporations profit sharing plan effective on that date

The Corporation maintains deferred compensation plan for certain key executives and directors which

provides supplemental retirement and life insurance benefits The plan is partially funded by life insurance on

the participants which lists the bank as beneficiary The estimated present value of future benefits to be paid

which are included in other liabilities amounted to 681004 and 718390 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Annual expense of$ 68555 73446 and 76008 was charged to operations for 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

As result of the merger in 2006 with FNB Financial Corporation the Corporation acquired three supplemental

retirement benefit plans for directors and executive officers These plans are funded with single premium life

insurance on the plan participants The cash value of the life insurance policies is an unrestricted asset of the

Corporation The estimated present value of future benefits to be paid totaled 508439 and 493726 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively which is included in other liabilities Total annual expense for these

plans amounted to $41327 $34159 and $123149 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

24



Note Employee Benefit Plans Continued

The Corporation has supplemental group term retirement plan which covers certain officers of the

Corporation This plan is funded with single premium life insurance on the plan participants The cash

surrender value of the policies is an unrestricted asset of the Corporation The estimated present value of the

future benefits to be paid totaled 234288 and $186295 at December 2008 and 2007 respectively Total

annual expense for this plan was 47993 78455 and 66225 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Corporation maintains an employee stock ownership plan ESOP that generally covers all employees who
have completed one year of service and attained the age of twenty Contributions to the plan are determined

annually by the Board of Directors as percentage of the participants total compensation Compensation for

the plan is defined as compensation paid including salary reduction under Sections 125 and 40 1k of the IRS

Code but excluding nontaxable fringe benefits and any compensation over 200000 The payments of benefits

to participants are made at death disability termination or retirement Contributions to the plan for all

employees charged to operations amounted to 257500 220654 and 144000 for 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively All shares held in the plan are considered issued and outstanding for earnings per share

calculations and all dividends earned on ESOP shares are charged against retained earnings the same as other

outstanding sharcs Total allocated shares of the plan were 107997 and 99507 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

During 2008 the Corporation recorded its liability for post-retirement costs of insurance of bank owned life

insurance policies in accordance with EITF 06-04 The estimated present value of the cost of post retirement

insurancc totaled 1108927 Total annual expense for this insurance was 107934 for 2008 See Note 21 for

further discussion

Note 10 Stock Option Plans

In 1996 the Corporation implemented two nonqualified stock option plans which are described below Tile

compensation cost that has been charged against income for those plans was 75659 104235 and

108615 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The first plan is for select key employees This plan granted options for up to 1500 1603 and 1488 shares at

purchase price of .00 per share for the years ended December 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

These options can be exercised only by the key employees during his/her lifetime

The second plan is for outside directors This plan granted options to purchase 5000 4326 and 4062 shares

for each director at 41.10 44.75 and 47.75 per share for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively which was based on the market value of the stock at the grant date Options are vested one

year following the grant date and expire upon the earlier of 120 months following the date of the grant or one

year following the date on which director ceases to serve in such capacity for the corporation At

December 31 2008 the range of exercise prices was from 20.13 to 47.75 per share At December 31 2008

there were 87432 shares that can still be granted under these plans

summary of the status of the Corporations two fixed stock option plans as of December31 is as follows

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Price Per Price Per Price Per

Fixed Options Shares Share Shares Share Shares Share

Outstanding at beginning of year 34858 34 32674 32 30006 29

Granted 6500 32 5929 33 5550 35

Exercised 7463 20 3745 10 2882

Forfeited/expired 3187 41

Outstanding at end of year 30708 37 34858 $_M 32674 32

Options exercisable at year end 25708 30532 28612

Weighted average fair value of

options per share granted

during the year 1206 18.19 $19.57
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Note 10 Stock Option Plans Continued

Outstanding options at December 31 2008 consist of the following

Note 11 Deposits

Included in savings deposits at December arc NOW and Money Market Account balances totaling

$175169000 and 183246000 for 2008 and 2007 respectively

Time deposits of 100000 and over aggregated 32629000 and 33013000 at December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively At December 2008 and 2007 the scheduled maturities of time deposits of 100000 and

over are as follows

Maturity

Three months or less

Over three months through

twelve months

Over twelve months

2008 2007

000 omitted

Shares

Shares Exercisable Remaining Exercise

Outstanding Vested Contractual Life Price

2040 2040 year 32.13

1950 1950 years 24.37

2577 2577 years 20.13

2160 2160 years
24.25

2436 2436 years
30.00

3870 3870 years
38.75

3405 3405 years 43.75

3385 3385 years 47.75

3685 3685 years 44.75

5000 10 years 41.10

200 200 Life 1.00

30.708 _25ift yars 36.52
Total/Average ________

The total intrinsic value of options exercised under both plans in 2008 2007 and 2006 was 130000

129000 and 110620 respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was $10000

289000 and 424056 at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model with the following weighted-average assumptions

2008 2007 2006

Dividend yield 2.45% 2.20% 3.0 1%

Expected life Director

Expected life Officer 0.25 0.25 0.25

Expected volatility 8.43% 13.72% 19.79%

Risk-free interest rate Director 3.54% 4.68% 4.43%

Risk-free interest rate Officer 3.22% 5.09% 4.30%

7299 7149

13541

11789

18228

7636
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Note 11 Deposits Continued

At December 31 2008 scheduled maturities of all time deposits are as follows

000 omitted

2009 109202

2010 16251

2011 24924

2012 3117

2013 7591

$iL05

The aggregate amount of demand deposits reclassified as loan balances were 94753 and 93583 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Corporation accepts deposits of the officers directors and employees on the same terms including interest

rates as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons The aggregate dollar

amount ofdeposits ofofficers directors and employees totaled $4517187 and $3809880 at December 31
2008 and 2007 respectively

Note 12 Liabilities for Other Borrowed Funds

The total amount available under lines of credit at other area banks at December 31 2008 and 2007 was

9900000 and $18900000 respectively Of this amount 8670000 and 10655000 were outstanding at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Interest on these lines ranged from 2.25% to 6.75% for 2008 and

2007

In addition 271993 and 340988 of the balance of liabilities for other borrowed funds at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively represents the balance of the Treasury Tax and Loan Investment Program The

Corporation elected to enter into this program in accordance with federal regulations This program permits the

Corporation to borrow these Treasury Tax and Loan funds by executing an open-ended interest bearing note to

the Federal Reserve Bank Interest is payable monthly and is computed at 1/4% below the Federal Funds

interest rate The note is secured by U.S Government obligations with par value of 243743 and 316120
at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Corporation also had the following borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank

2008 2007

Interest Interest

Loan Type Rate Balance Rate Balance Maturity

Variable 0.59% $18873000 N/A 02/28/12

Fixed rate 3.95 10000000 N/A 02/08/18

Fixed rate 4.45 1500000 4.45% 1500000 08/05/25

Fixedrate 6.64 104108 6.64 112713 07/17/17

Convertible 6.23 2250000 6.23 2250000 08/30/10

Convertible 5.83 2000000 5.83 2000000 08/10/10

Convertible 5.975 500000 5.975 500000 07/21/10

Convertible 5.25 5000000 5.25 5000000 04/06/11

Convertible 6.54 500000 6.54 500000 07/12/10

Convertible N/A 5.395 5000000 09/15/08

Convertible 3.99 5000000 3.99 5000000 11/27/12

Convertible 4.13 5000000 4.13 5000000 05/07/18

50727108 26862713
Purchase accounting

fair value

adjustment 144509 123360
$0582599 26739.353
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Note 12 Liabilities for Other Borrowed Funds Continued

Total maximum borrowing capacity from Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31 2008 was $229514000

Collateral for borrowings consists of certain securities and the Corporations 1-4 family mortgage loans totaling

approximately 231 million at December 31 2008

Note 13 Income Taxes

The Corporation and its subsidiary the Bank file income tax returns in the federal jurisdiction and the

states of Pennsylvania and Maryland With few exceptions the Corporation is no longer subject to

federal state and local income tax examination by tax authorities for years prior to 2005

The Corporation adopted the provisions of FIN 48 Accountingfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes on January

2007 with no impact on the financial statements

Included in the balance sheet at December 31 2008 are tax positions related to loan charge-offs for which the

ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility

Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting other than interest and penalties the disallowance of the

shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of

cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period

The components of income tax expense are summarized as follows

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted

Current year provision

Federal 1569 2693 2405

State 61 20 326

Deferred income taxes benefit 1084 342 13
424 $2331 $2718

Federal income taxes were computed after reducing pretax accounting income for non-taxable income in the

amount of$ 1085359 51435976 and$ 1466777 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

reconciliation of the effective applicable income tax rate to the federal statutory rate is as follows

2008 2007 2006

Federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%

Increase resulting from

State taxes net of federal tax benefit .5 .3 3.6

Reduction resulting from

Nontaxable income and investment impairment 22.7

Effective income tax rate iL% 249% 3O2%
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Note 13 Income Taxes Continued

Deferred tax assets have been provided for deductible temporary differences related to the allowance for loan

loss deferred compensation unrealized losses on securities available for sale and interest on nonaccrual loans

Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for taxable temporary differences related to depreciation The net

deferred taxes included in the accompanying balance sheets at December are as follows

2008 2007

Deferred Tax Assets

Bad debts 1563 1268

Deferred compensation 404 408

Stock options 36 25

Unrealized loss/impairment on investment securities 1851

3854 1701

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 296 185
Unrealized gain on investment securities 2715
Purchase accounting fair value adjustments 451 458

747 3358
Net deferred tax asset liability 5Jji2 L52

The Corporation has not recorded valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets as management feels that it is

more likely than not that they will be ultimately realized
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Note 14 Tower Bancorp Inc Parent Company Only Financial Information

The following are the condensed balance sheets statements of income and statements of cash flows for the

parent company
Balance Sheets

December 31

Assets
2008 2007

000 omitted

Cash 18

Securities available for sale 18483 33861

Investment in subsidiaries 62786 62655

Other assets 2540 189

Total assets
83.827 7U

Liabilities

Other liabilities 3942

Notes payable subsidiary 4400 3700

Notes payable other 8670 10655

Total liabilities 13070 18.297

Stockholders Equity

Common stock no par value authorized 5000000 shares issued

2420481 shares 2225 2225

Additional paid-in capital 34787 3483

Retained earnings
40278 40696

Accumulated other comprehensive income 2375 4558

74915 82310

Less Cost of Treasury stock 105001 shares --2008

98055 shares 2007 4.158 3896

Total stockholders equity 70757 78414

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 83827 94111

Statements of Income

Years Ended December31

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted

Income

Dividends 654 640 594

Net gain on sale of securities 257 1900 3995

Cash dividends from wholly-owned subsidiary 3943 2489 2016

4854 5.fi29 6605

Expenses

Interest 617 993 795

Taxes 1328 392 1154

Postage and printing
71 61 70

Management fees 180 120 120

Professional fees 159 288 510

Merger expenses
300

Impairment expenses
2607

Other expenses
81 28

2687 2677

Income before equity in undistributed income 2167 3171 3928

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary 1011 3866 2204

Net Income 3i2 5LQ37 Sli13
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Note 14 Tower Bancorp Inc Parent Company Only Financial Information Continued

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

000 omitted
Cash flows operating activities

Net income 3178 7037 6132

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by

operating activities

Net gain on sale of investment securities 257 1900 3995
Granting stock options 78 108 109

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 1011 3866 2203
Impairment of investments 1721

Increase in other assets 138 85 48
Increase decrease in other liabilities 1690 158 670

Net cash provided by operating activities 1881 1136 664

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities 456 3200 11903
Cash paid in merger 2370
Sales of investment securities 2799 5000 jj377

Net cash provided used by investing activities 2.343 1800 2.896
Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of treasury stock 557 1853 813
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 226 302 226
Dividends paid 2596 2489 2017
Net proceeds from short-term borrowings 1285 1110 4815

Net cash provided used by financing activities L4212 2930 2211

Net increase decrease in cash 12 21
Cash beginning 21

Cash ending $J4 $O
Note 15 Compensating Balance Arrangements

Included in cash and due from banks are required deposit balances at the Federal Reserve of$ 615000 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 and required deposit balances at Equifax of 49381 and 54745 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively These are maintained to cover processing costs and service charges

Note 16 Concentration of Credit Risk

The Corporation grants agribusiness commercial and residential loans to customers throughout the Cumberland
Valley area Franklin and Fulton Counties Pennsylvania and Washington County Maryland The Corporation
maintains diversified loan portfolio and evaluates each customers credit-worthiness on case-by-case basis
At December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively 63% and 63% of the Corporations loan portfolio is concentrated
in mortgages secured by 1-4 family properties and 6% and 7% is concentrated in commercial and industrial

loans The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Corporation upon the extension of credit
is based on managements credit evaluation of the customer Collateral held varies but generally includes

equipment and real estate

The Corporation maintains deposit balances at several correspondent banks which provide check collection and
item processing services to the bank The balances with these correspondent banks at times exceed federally

insured limits which management considers to be normal business risk

-31



Note 17 Commitments and Contingencies

The Corporation leased its facilities in Mercersburg under noncancellable operating lease that expired June 30

2008 Total annual rent expense charged to operations was $14800 39300 and 22200 for 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

The Corporation leased its facilities in Chambersburg under noncancellable lease that expired in September

2007 Total rent expense charged to operations under the noncancellable lease was 7200 for 2007 and 9600

for 2006

During 2007 the Corporation entered into an agreement to lease other Chambersburg facilities under

noncancellable operating lease Under the terms the lease began in July 2008 and will expire in July 2018 with

the option to renew for two additional five-year periods with subsequent rental amounts subject to Rental

Escalation Article In addition to monthly rent payments the Corporation will pay
its proportionate share of any

ad valorem and real estate taxes levied or assessed on the property The rent expense charged was 20877 and

for 2008 and 2007 respectively

During 2005 the Corporation entered into lease for its facilities in Hagerstown at Eastern Boulevard under

noncancellable operating lease that expires in 2020 Beginning June 2006 the lease will be subjected to

CPI increase not to exceed 5% per year Total annual rent expense charged to operations was 104952

102200 and 96000 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Corporation leases site for an Automatic Teller Machine under noncancellable operating lease that

expires in 2013 with the right to negotiate an extended lease of two additional five year terms Total rent

expense charged to operations was 10800 for 2008 2007 and 2006

In May 2008 the Corporation entered into lease agreement for its Call Center facility in Shady Grove under

non-cancellable operating lease that expires on April 30 2009 The lease can be renewed for five consecutive

one year periods subject to CPI increase at the time of renewal Total rent charged to operations under this

lease was 10777 for 2008

An operating lease was entered into during 2008 to lease temporary
branch facility in Hancock Maryland

while the Corporation upgrades its existing building The terms of the lease call for monthly payments of rent

and taxes in addition to relocation fees initial fees and terminated fees The lease is continued month-to-

month as needed by the Corporation at $1483 per month

Following is schedule by years
of future minimum rentals under the lease agreements as of December

2008 based on current lease terms

Year Ending

2009 161000

2010 154000

2011 154000

2012 154000

2013 150000

Thereafter 874000

Total rent expense paid under operating leases was 175456 $175718 and 151960 for 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively

The Corporation is an occasional party to legal actions arising in the ordinary course of its business In the

opinion of management Tower has adequate legal defenses and/or insurance coverage respecting any and each

of these actions and does not believe that they will materially affect the Corporations operations or financial

condition
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Note 17 Commitments and Contingencies Continued

On November 12 2008 Tower Bancorp Inc Tower and Graystone Financial Corp Graystone reached

definitive agreement to form partnership of their financial institutions The First National Bank of Greencastle
and Graystone Bank respectively whose combined assets will become over 1.2 billion with offices

headquartered in Harrisburg Pennsylvania As part of the transaction Tower will exchange 0.42 shares of

Tower common stock for each outstanding share of Graystone In addition the definitive agreement provides
that the Tower shareholders will receive special cash dividend of $1 12 per share prior to the effective date of

the transaction This special dividend was approved on March 112009 and is payable on March 31 2009 to

shareholders of record on March 20 2009 It is conditioned on final regulatory approvals of the merger prior to

payment The transaction has received shareholder approval on March 2009 and is subject to regulatory

approval and is expected to close in the second quarter of 2009

Pursuant to the agreement the resulting holding company shall be named Tower Bancorp Inc with 20 members
of the Board of Directors ten each designated by Tower and Graystone respectively The agreement also

provides that Kermit Hicks shall serve as Chairman of the Board of the resulting holding company

Note 18 Intangible Assets

On June 2006 Tower completed the merger of FNB Financial Corporation FNB Prior to completion of

the Merger The First National Bank of McConnellsburg FNBs sole banking subsidiary was nationally-

chartered commercial bank Immediately after the merger The First National Bank of McConnellsburg became

wholly-owned subsidiary of Tower The First National Bank of McConnellsburg merged with and into First

National Bank of Greencastle on August 26 2006

In the merger FNB shareholders received either 0.8663 shares of Tower common stock for each share of FNB
common stock or 39.00 in cash for each share held depending on shareholder elections and subject to the

allocation provisions of the Merger Agreement Tower acquired all of the outstanding shares of FNBs common
stock In connection with the Merger Tower paid to the fonner shareholders of FNB in the aggregate 2363
million in cash and issued to the former shareholders of FNB in the aggregate 640381 shares of Towers
common stock

This transaction resulted in intangible assets and goodwill as follows

As of December 31 2008 As of December 31 2007

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

000 omitted 000 omitted
Amortized intangible assets

Core deposit relationships jQQ8

Amortization
expense amounted to 358560 and 401161 for 2008 and 2007 respectively and is included in

other operating expenses The estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows

000 omitted

2009 $316

2010 273

2011 231

2012 188

2013 146
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Note 18 Intangible Assets Continued

Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are as

follows

2008 2007

000 Omitted

Beginning balance 16558 $16535

Other adjustments
23

Ending balance 16558 16.55S

As of December 31 2008 the Corporation considers the goodwill acquired in the merger with FNB to not be

impaired

Mortgage Servicing Rights

During 2007 the Corporation recorded the value of mortgage servicing rights The balance of this valuation

was 248487 and 300572 as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively This asset is being amortized

over the life of the related loans

Note 19 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Corporations financial instruments were as follows at December 31

2008 2007

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 10757 10757 $16770 16770

Federal funds sold 20081 20081

Interest bearing deposits with banks 802 802

Securities available for sale 76451 76451 83846 83846

Loans receivable 419103 402377 399158 402423

Cash surrender value of life insurance 11208 11208 10768 10768

Accrued interest receivable 1855 1855 1861 1861

Restricted bank stock 4788 4788 2914 2914

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Time certificates 161085 162279 169166 169628

Other deposits 260226 260226 270764 270764

Otherborrowedfunds 59525 60823 37735 38115

Accrued interest payable
637 637 999 999

Note 20 Regulatory Matters

Dividends paid by Tower Bancorp Inc are generally provided from the subsidiary banks dividends to Tower

The Federal Reserve Board which regulates bank holding companies establishes guidelines which indicate that

cash dividends should be covered by current year earnings and the debt to equity ratio of the holding company

must be below thirty percent The Bank as national bank is subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by

the Comptroller of the Currency Under such restrictions the Bank may not without prior approval of the

Comptroller of the Currency declare dividends in excess of the sum of the current years earnings as defined

plus retained earnings as defined from the prior two years Dividends that the Bank could declare without

approval of the Comptroller of the Currency amounted to approximately 8493662 and 7686266 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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Note 20 Regulatory Matters Continued

The Corporation is also subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking

agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional

discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the corporations
financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines the corporation is required to maintain minimum
capital ratios The leverage ratio compares capital to adjusted total balance sheet assets while risk-based

ratios compare capital to risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet activity in order to make capital levels more
sensitive to risk profiles of individual banks comparison of Tower Bancorps capital ratios to regulatory
minimums at December 31 is as follows

To Be Well

Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2008

Total capital to risk weighted assets 56769 15.02% 30244 8.00% 37804 10.00%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets 52172 13.80% 15122 4.00% 30244 6.00%
Tier capital to average assets 52172 9.74% 21429 4.00% 26786 5.00%

As of December31 2007

Total capital to risk weighted assets 20654 16.74% 29571 8.00% 36964 10.00%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets 18987 14.95% 14786 4.00% 22178 6.00%
Tier capital to average assets 18987 10.03% 22053 4.00% 27567 5.00%

As of December 31 2008 the most recent notification from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

categorized the financial institution as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective

action To be categorized as well capitalized the Corporation must maintain minimum total risk Tier risk-

based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the above table There are no conditions or events since that

notification that management believes have changed the financial institutions category

On August 27 2008 the First National Bank of Greencastle entered into Memorandum of UnderstandingMOU with the Comptroller of the Currency 0CC The MOU relates primarily to the Banks lending
function and allowance for loan losses The Board of Directors and management are committed to addressing
and resolving the issues presented in the MOU

Note 21 Effects of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006 the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards Board EITF issued

EITF 06-04 This pronouncement affects the recording of post-retirement costs of insurance of bank owned life

insurance policies in instances where the Bank has promised continuation of life insurance coverage to persons

post retirement EITF 06-04 requires that liability equal to the present value of the cost of post retirement

insurance be recorded during the insured employees term of service The terms of this pronouncement require

the initial recording of this liability with corresponding adjustment to retained earnings to reflect the

implementation of the pronouncement On January 2008 the Corporation recorded $1001000 liability

and corresponding decrease in retained earnings For periods after January 2008 the Corporation will

record an appropriate liability and corresponding effects on current income for the applicable periods net

expense of 107934 was recorded for the year ended December 31 2008 as result of this pronouncement
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES BE THE REGISTRANT

The First National Bank of Greencastle Center Square Greencastie

Pennsylvania National Bank organized under the National Bank Act

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT BE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Tower Bancorp Inc

We consent to the incorporation by reference to previously filed

Registration Statements Form S-14 No 289573 Form 5-8 No 33340661 and Form

S4 No 333-130485 of Tower Bancorp Inc of our report dated March 13 2009

relating to the financial statements and our report dated March 13 2009 on the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting appearing in the 2008

annual report to the shareholders incorporated by reference in this Form l0E of

Tower Bancorp Inc for the year ended December 31 2008

/s/SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS COMPANY LLC

Chambersburg PA

March 13 2009



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Jeff Shank President and CEO certify that

have reviewed this annual reprrt en Fcrm 10-K ef Tewer Bancurp Inc

Based en my knewledge the annual repert dues nut centein any untrue statement ef
material fart cr emit Cc state material fact necessary te make the statements made In

light ci the circumstances under which such statements were made net misleading with

respect tc the perled revered by this annual repcrt

Based en my knewledge the financial statements and ether financial infermatien
included in this anneal repert fairly present in all material respects the financial

renditien results ef eperatiens and rash flews ef the registrant as ef and fur the

perieds presented in this annual repcrt

The regIstrants ether certifying effirer and are respensible fur establishing and

maintaining disrlesure rentrels and preredures as defined in Exchange Art Rules 13a-15e
and 15d-15e and internal ccntrcl ever financial reperting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15f and 15f and 15d-15f fur the registrant and we have

designed surh dlsclcsure rentrels and prcredures cr caused such disclcsure

runtrels and precedures tc be designed under cur supervisien te ensure that material

infermatien relating tc the registrant including Its cunselidated subsidiaries is made

knuwn te us by ethers within these entities particularly during the pericd in which this

annual repurt is being prepared

designed such Internal rentrul ever financial repcrting er reused surh Internal
rentrul ever financial repurting tc be designed under cur supervisicn tu previde
reescneble assurance regarding the reliability ef fInancIal repcrting end the preperetiun
uf financial statements fur external purpeses In arrerdenre wIth generally errepted
erreunting principles

evaluated the effectiveness ci the registrants disrlcsure rentrels end prcredures
end presented In this annual repcrt cur rcnrlusicns ebeut the effectiveness ef the

dlsrlcsure rentrels end preredures as ef the end ef the peeled revered by this annual

repert based en such eveluetien and

disrlcsed in this annual repcrt any change in the registrants internal rentrel

ever financial repcrting that urrurred during the registrants must recent fiscal guerter
that has materially effected cc is reesenebly likely tc meterlelly effect the

registrants internal rcntrcl ever financial repcrting

The registrants ether certifying uffirer end have dlsclused based en cur meet
recent eveluetiun cf internal rentrel ever financial repurting tc the registrants
euditcrs end the audit rcmmittee uf registrants bcerd ef direrters cc persuns perfcrmlng
the eguivelent funrtiun

all significant deficiencies end meterlel weeknesses in the design cc eperetiun uf
the internal rcntrcl ever financial reperting which are reesunebly likely tc adversely
effect the registrants ability tc recerd prcress summerize end repert finenriel

infurmetiun end

any fraud whether ur net materiel that invelves menegement cr ether empleyees whc

have signifirent rule in the registrants internel runtrel ever finenriel reperting

By /s/ Jeff Shank
__________

Jeff Shank

President and CEO

Prinripel Executive Offirer
Nerrh 13 2009



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Franklin Kiink III Treasurer certify that

hava reviawed thia annual raport on Form 10K of Towor Bancorp Inc

Baaad on my knowledge the annual report doea not contain any untrue statement of

material fart or omit to state material fart necessary to make the statements made in

light of the circumstenres under whirh surh statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this annual report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information

included in this annual report fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this annual report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Cxchange Act Rules 13wl5e
and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined In Exchange Act

Rules l3al5f and 15f and 15d15f for the registrant and we have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure

controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made

known to us by others within those entitles particularly during the period in which this

annual report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal

control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures

and presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual

report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter

that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most

recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants

auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing

the equivalent function

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of

the internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report financial

information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who

have significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

by /s/ Franklin Klink III

Franklin Flink III

Treasurer

Principal Financial Officer

March 13 2009



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEy ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tower Bancorp Inc the
Corporation on Form 10K for the period ending December 31 2008 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date therein specified the
Report Jeff Shank President and Chief Executive Officer of the

Corporation certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C section 1350 as adopted pursuant to
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition and results of operations of the
Corporation as of and for the period covered by the report

/s/ Jeff Shank

Jeff Shank

President and Chief

Executive Officer

Dated March 13 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Tower Bancorp Inc the

corporation on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31 2008 as filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date therein specified the

Report Franklin Klink III Chief Financial Officer of the

Corporation certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material

respects the financial condition and results of operations of the

Corporation as of and for the period covered by the report

/s/ Franklin Klink III

Franklin Klink III

Chief Financial Officer

Dated March 13 2009
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